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mazars Mazars Luxembourg
5, rue Guillaume f. KrollL-1882 LuxembourgLuxembourg
Tel: +352 27 lt4 I
Fax; +352 27 tL4 20www.mazars.lu

To the Partners ofTPIF Douro Bidco S.i r.l.Soci6t6 i responsabilit6 limit6eR.C.S. Luxembourg B 235.880
20, rue de la PosteL-2346 LUXEMBOURG

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D'ENTREPRISES AGREE
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TPIF Douro Bidco S.i r.l. and itssubsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position asat December 31, 2021, and, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidatedstatement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, theconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to theconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
ln our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in allmaterial respects the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31 , 2021,and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year thenended in accordance with the accounting principles and methods described in the notes ("Note3") to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of July 23, 2016 on the audit profession(Law of July 23, 2016) and with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs) as adopted forLuxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" (CSSF).Our responsibilities under the Law of July 23, 2016 and lSAs as adopted for Luxembourg bythe CSSF are further described in the < Responsibilities of "R6viseur d'Entreprises 49166" forthe Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements > section of our report. We are alsoindependent of the Group in accordance with the lnternational Ethics Standards Board forAccountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted forLuxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our auditof the consolidated financial statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesunder those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars Lux€mbourg - Cabinet d€ rAvision agr66
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lnazars
Emphasis of Matter
We draw your attention to the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which describesthe basis of accounting. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to assist theCompany in complying with the financial reporting requirements of the Group in portugal. Asa result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report isintended solely for the Company and should not be distributed to or used by parties other thanthe Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other information
The Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprisesthe information included in the management report but does not include the consolidatedfinancial statements and our report of the "R6viseur d'Entreprises Ag166" thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information andwe do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
ln connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is toread the other information and, in doing so, considerwhetherthe other information is materiallyinconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, weconclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required toreport this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for theConsolidated Financial Statements
The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidatedfinancial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and forsuch internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the preparationof consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.
ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management is responsible forassessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattersrelated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless theManagement either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realisticalternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reportingprocess.

3



lnazars
Responsibilities of the "R6viseur d'Entreprises Ag166" for the Audit of the consolidatedFinancial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financialstatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, andto issue a report of the "R6viseur d'Entreprises 49166" that includes our opinion. Reasonableassurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted inaccordance with the Law dated July 23, 2016 and with lSAs as adopted for Luxembourg bythe CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arisefrom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couldreasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated July 23, 2016 and with lSAs as adoptedfor Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professionalskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduresresponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriateto provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatementresulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involvecollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol;
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management;
Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis ofaccounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertaintyexists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group'sability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,we are required to draw attention in our report of the "R6viseur d'Entreprises 49166" tothe related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disciosuresare inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the auditevidence obtained up to the date of our report of the "R6viseur d'Entreprises 49166".However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as agoing concern;
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financialstatements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financialstatements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner thatachieves fair presentation;

a

a

a

a

a
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of theentities and business activities within the Group to express an opinion on theconsolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervisionand performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our auditopinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, theplanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significantdeficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Luxembourg, 19 May, 2022
For Mnznns LuxEMBouRc, Cabinet de r6vision agr665, rue Guillaume J. KrollL- 1882 LUXEMBOURG

AmiT CHAKROUNR6viseur d'entreprises ag166

a
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r,l.

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF MANAGERS

The Company is governed by the Articles of Association and the Laws of the Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg in particular the law of 10 August 19L5 on Commercial Companies, as amended (the
"L9!5 Law").
The Company is constituted for an unlimited period and Caravela - Companhia de Seguros S.A., that
operates in Portugal, is the only asset that is held (48.Oo/o stake).
Regarding the Group's activity, the year 2021 was mainly characterized as the 2nd year of the COVID-
19 Pandemic. This year was marked by the reduction in insurable activity resulting from the economic
slowdown and this impacted the Group's performance.
Despite the impact felt in 2021, stands out the capacity of adaptability and resilience shown by Group's
ecosystem in the face of a set of adverse events.
We thank the Portuguese lnsurance and Pension Funds Supervisory Authority (ASF) for the
cooperation and suggestions made while monitoring Group's activity.

Taavi Davies
Benoni Dufour
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GOVERNING BODIES
o TPIF Douro Bidco S.A.r.l

a CARAVELA - Companhia de Seguros S.A.

Taavi Davies
Benoni Dufour

Board of Managers

Nuno Miguel Marques dos Santos Horta
Nuno Miguel Novais Grangeon Cdrcomo Lobo

President
Secretary

GeneralMeeting

Luis Filipe Sampaio Cervantes
David Angulo Rubio
Ant6nio Manuel Nestor Ribeiro
Fabrizio Cesario
George Koulouris
Gongalo Lopes da Costa de Ramos e Costa
Jos6 Paulo de Castro Trigo

President
Vice-President

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Board of Directors

Manuel Augusto Lopes de Lemos
Humberto Manuel Martins Carneiro
Jos6 Elisio Lopes da Silva Quintas
Jos6 Ant6nio Truta Pinto Rabaga

President
Member
Member
Alternate

Supervisory Board

Mazars & Associados - Sociedade de Revisores Oficiais deContas, S.A. - SROC ne 51, representada por Pedro Miguel
Pires de Jesus - ROC ne 1930
Paulo Jorge Dami6o Pereira - ROC ns 1219

Effective
Alternate

Certified Public Accountants
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

1. lntroduction
From a global point of view, the resurgence of the pandemic postponed once more the start of robusteconomic growth; despite that, the support to economic policies-monetary and fiscal-and theongoing vaccination campaigns around the world are reflecting an improvement of economicperspectivesfor 2O22.
The long-term perspectives for the global economy are clearly better even if unequal in the different
regions of the globe.
The European Union (EU) approved a regulation that establishes the Recovery and Resilience
Mechanism that will distribute 750 billion euros in funds to finance the investment and reform
programs defined on national recovery and resilience national plans later approved by UE, and which
had to be based on pre-defined strategic goals, like green transition, digital transformation, and social
and territorial cohesion.
Despite the uncertainty we live in, in 2O21, the national insurance market presented a volume ofproduction of direct insurance superior to 13,1 billion euros, reflecting an increase of 34,8% when
compared to the amount verified in 2O2O.
This growth was strongly influenced by the Life line of business with an expressive growth of 69,5%o,
represented in 7,7 billion of gross written premiums.
The subsector of Non-Life line of business maintained an extremely limited growth, like in the past
years, achieving the 5,4 billion euros of gross written premiums, with a positive variation of 4,9%
considering the previous year.
Meanwhile, Caravela - Companhia de Seguros, S.A. continued its path of growth, based on significant
knowledge of the Portuguese insurance market and supported by innovative projects, some of which
were abroad. This growth was seen in a business volume of LL6,4 million euros at the end of the
financial year, which represented an increase of L5,5% regarding 2020, allowing for the maintenance
of the Company in the 10th place of the ranking of Non-Life companies active in Portugal.
From the events that occurred in the year that now ended, the most significant will have been the firstpartnership ever made with a foreign broker, which allowed for the beginning of the
commercialization of a product design by Caravela under the Freedom to Provide Services (LPS)
regime, in the competitive French insurance market.

2. Mission
The purpose of TPIF Douro is the direct or indirect acquisitions and holding of stakes/interests, in anyform whatsoever, in Luxembourg and/or foreign undertakings, as well as the administration,
development, management and disposal thereof.
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

3. Macroeconomic Framework
3.1. lnternational Environmentl
Throughout2.OZL, notwithstanding allthe above, a path began to be followed marked by the recovery
of the
economic activity at a global level, after the negative impact caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Following the lastforecasts of the lnternational Monetary Fund (lMF), a growth of the world's gross
domestic product of 5,9% is expected, showing a sharp contrast regarding 2O2O (-3,L%) and
approaching pre-pandemic values:

Evolution of the World's GDP
8.O%
6.O%
4.0%
2.0%
o.o%

-2.0%
-4.0%

3.7Yo 3.6Yo
5.9Yo

2oztlEl

2.8%

20t7 20192018
k-updote-jdnudry -2022
?8.en,pdf. Econofric ond monetory

During the year there was a sharp growth in global activity. Although in the first semester the growth
rhythm began moderately, due to the worsening of the pandemic in that period in some countries,
there was a greater dynamism after the second semester, mainly due to the advanced economies,
because of the progress verified in the vaccination rates, the economic support measures, and the
impact of greater flexibility in economic activity restriction measures.
There was a more robust growth of commercial trades in emerging countries, mainly after the opening
of the economies, in the first semester of 202L. However, some uncertainty is noticeable, regarding
the recovery rhythm of the global economy, provoked by the limitations of the offer in the supply of
essential intermediary products, such as semiconductors, necessary to the fabrication of products,with direct consequences on the industrial production and exports of advanced economies.
Additionally, there still are disturbances in the international trade caused by the United Kingdom's exit
from the European Union.

1 rorr"u,
lntemationol Monetdry Fund (Jdntary 2022)- otld Economic Outlook Updote,Jonuory 2022" Avdildble dt:

httpt://www.imf.otg/en/Publicotions/WEolssues/2O22/01/25/woild-economic4utlook-upddte-jonudry -2022
Bank of Pottugdl (December 2027)-"Boletim Econ6mico"
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From all economies, the following stand out:
ln the United States, the evolution of the economy is estimated at 5,6%o, recovering after
moderate growth in the third quarter caused by the resurgence of COVID-19 infections. The
decrease of the waiting time and shipping costs between China and the United States stands
out, even if the stock volume of durable goods remains below the pre-pandemic levels.
China is estimated to have a GDP growth of 8,1Yo, but the growth rhythm in the activity sharply
decreased due to energy shortage, instability in the real estate sector, and the new COVID-19
outbreaks.
As in China, Japan's economy decreased in the third quarter, due to supply constraints and the
resurgence of COVID-L9 infections. The progress in vaccination and the continuous political
support have been particularly important for the economic growth, which was around 1,6Yoin
202L.
There was a strong resurgence of COVID-19 infections in lndia in the second quarter of 202I,
which caused a significant contraction in the economic activity, followed by a recovery in the
third quarter. The favourable recovery rhythm in lndia positively impacted the increase of thegrowth of the world's GDP (excluding the Euro area) on the third and fourth quarters, even ifit was not followed by developments in other great economies. lt is foreseen that lndia had,
in2O2L,aneconomicgrowth of 9%.ltwasthecountrywiththemostpositiveevolutionamong
the developing countries and emerging markets.

a

a

a

a

The United Kingdom saw its economic activity remain moderate. The main causes for this
scenario were interruptions in the supply chain, workforce shortage due to the global
conditions and Brexit, and poor investment. However, the private consumption pushed the
economic activity forward, as COVID-19 restrictions diminished. lt is expected a growth of the
GDP of 7,2%.

As it can be seen on the commentaries above, from the developing countries and emergent markets,
China and lndia positively stand out, following the advanced economies in the return to the pre-
pandemic crisis scenario. However, the recovery is still behind in other emergent economies, and it is
foreseen this slower momentum will impact global activity in the future. ln 202L, the developing
countries and emergent markets will have presented a growth of 6,5%.
ln the Euro Zone, the economy is still recovering, and an economic growth of 5,2% is foreseen for 2O2I
and of 3,9%ofor 2022.ll is expected that the strong domestic demand will push the recovery of the
economic activity forward in the near future. Throughout202L, the labour market has also positively
evolved, with a greater number of people employed, which justifies the increase of rent and
consumption of the families. lt should be noted that the growing costs associated with energy are
having a negative impact on consumption. The projection regarding foreign demand in the Euro area
is of an increase of 8,9Yo in 2021 and 4,OYo in 2022. However, it is worth noting that these results are

7
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inferior when compared to previous projections, which is essentially due to the negative impact of
global import supply problems. The Eurosystem projections for inflation point towards a rise of O,3o/o
in 2O2O,2,6% in 2O21, and 3,2% in 2022.
It is important to note that, due to the last pandemic wave, some Euro Area countries have
reintroduced stricter containment measures which, as a result, may delay economic recovery,
especially in travel, tourism, housing, and entertainment sectors. ln fact, new virus variants have
generated once more an uncertainty climate, as well as influenced the consumers' trust and their
companies. Additionally, the shortage of equipment, materials and labour is hampering the production
of goods, causing delays in construction and slowing down the recovery in some sectors.
Projections for 2022 point towards

A moderate growth of the world's economic activity, where the global economy is expected to
grow 4,4Yo because of the mobility restrictions and health impacts due to the new virus variant- Omicron.

o A rise in inflation in the advanced economies, caused by the increase in prices of energy and
non-energy raw materials, which will remain high in 2O22, after the significant increase in2O2L,
and will decrease in the following years.

r Despite these aspects, the outlook for 2022 is encouraging regarding the growth of the world
economy.

3.2. National Framework2
After a historic contraction of the economy in 2O2O (-8,4%l,2O2L was marked by the sharp growth ofthe Portuguese economy and the strong recovery of the economic activity. GDP is estimated to grow
4,9%o comparatively with the same period of last year, the highest one since 1990:

2 Source:
Eank of Portuqdl (Decenber 2027)- "Boletim Econ6mico".
[Pottuguete] Depdftment of Findnce -"Reldtdtiodo oqdmento do Estado 2022".
[Pofruguese] Nolionol lnstitute oI Statistics (Januory 2022) -"Contos NdcionaisTimestrdis - Estimdtivd Rdpidd". Avdildble dt

https://www.ine.pt/xportal/xmoin?xpid=lNE&xpgid=ine_destoq\eS&DESTAQUESdest_boui=472472540&DESTAQUESmodo=2

o
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GDP evolution in Portugal
tO.Oo/o

4,gyo
2,7Yo
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Even if, due to the consequences provoked by the several COVID-19 pandemic waves, in the firstquarter of 2O2L there was a downturn in the Portuguese economy, factors such as the gradual liftingof the restrictive confinement measures, high COVID-L9 vaccination rates, and economic stimulus
programs, nationally and in Europe, boosted the recovery of economy and, consequently, the results
noticed in the first semester of this year were positive, where the GDP's growth was of 4,3%o,
comparatively with the same period of 2O2O.
ln the last semestet of 2021, due to the increase of economic consumption, mainly in August, the
economic activity recovered accelerated, even if the touristic activity is evolving slowly, but positively.
Overall, in 2027, domestic demand had a positive contribution for the growth of the Portuguese
economy, and a recovery of the private consumption and investment was seen. Also, there was a
significant increase in imports and exports of goods and services, resulting from the contribution of
net external demand, which was less negative.
It is expected that in2O2l the public debt to GDP ratio, decreases to L26,9o/ofrom the I35,2% recorded
in2O2O.
The labour market had an especially positive evolution. Despite having recorded a slight increase in
unemployment, there was an increase in the number of employed persons of 2,5%o. This contributedto the increase of the active population comparatively with 2020, thus following the economic
recovery.
The unemployment rate in 202L should be of 6,60/o, conrparatively with the 7,O/o recorded in 2020,
reaching pre-pandemic values. The unemployment rate is expected to continue to fall in the coming
years, reaching 5,4/o in 2024.
The positive forecasts for the labour market are the effect of the unusual nature of the economic crisis
caused by the pandemic, as well as the support labour measures adopted throughout 2O2O and2O2L:

5.0% 2.4Yo 2,2%

20t9
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Evolution of the unemplovment rate in Portugal

6,6Yo 6,SYo 7.OTo

2018 2019 2020 2OZL(E|

It is expected that inflation, influenced by the evolution of prices of energetic goods, increases in2O2L
to 0,9%o, in contrast to what was seen in2O2O (-O,t%|.
Projections for the Portuguese economy in 2O22 point towards a GDP growth period of 5,8To, and the
reintroduction of restrictive measures to contain the pandemic, resulting from the appearance of new
pandemic waves in Europe which may impact the evolution of the economic activity, mainly in the
tourism sector. Additionally, the shortage of raw materials and other goods, as well as the increase of
their cost, as a result of problems in the world supply chains, may also condition the recovery rhythm.
With the expected economic recovery, the public debt ratio as a percentage of GDP shall resume the
downward trend of the years before the pandemic. That way, it is foreseen for 2022 a reduction of
this indicator in 4,L pp, for 1-22,8% of the GDP. Regarding inflation, forecasts show a growth of up to
7,8%in 2O22, decelerating in the following years.
3.3. Financial System3
Throughout2O2L, for most of the advanced economies, fiscal policy remained expansionary in order
to support the recovery of the economic activity, even if there were some fiscal imbalances and an
increase in public debt. Forecasts show that monetary and financial conditions in the Euro area are
expected to remain favourable.
Short-term interest rates remained negative and at historically low levels, and it is estimated they
remain so for a longer time frame than the one foreseen. This is due, partly, to the revision of the
European Central Bank's strategy in the middle of last year. The projections show that the short-term
interest rate (3-month EURIBOR) was of -O,syoin2O2t, and will not have any variationin2022, despite
increasing from 2023 onwards.
On a more global perspective, there was a rising inflationary pressure in many economies, so there
has been an increase in the interest rates of the central banks of some emergent markets and
developing economies, as well as in some advanced economies. With this rise in interest rates, there

3^
Bdhk of Pottugdl (Decenher 2027)-"Boletim Econ6mico"
[Ponugtese I Depafrment of F-inance " Re latiio do Owamehto do F,stado 2022 "
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

will be an increase of the charges of debt service in some countries. Additionally, loans will become
more expensive all around the world, overloading public finance.
ln2O2L, the interest rate implicit in the Portuguese government bondsfell slightly, to2%from2,2%o
in 2020, and it is expected to remain unchanged in 2O22.
Regarding foreign exchange market, it is expected a euro-dollar exchange rate of L,L8%o, slightly above
the L,LA% seen in 2O2O. For the following years, this rate is expected to be in the region of !,L3%.
3.4. Trends in the lnsurance Sector and Development Prospects a

ln2O2L, in the Portuguese insurance sector, the direct insurance production volume was of 1-3,1 billion
euros, having shown a positive variation of 34,8o/o regarding 2O2O:

Evolution of direct insurance production in billioneuros
20.0 Lt.4 12.7 9.7

2018 2019 2020 202L

This positive evolution had a strong contribution form the Life line of business, which recorded a
variation of 69,5Yo, comparatively with 2O2O, representing now 58,3% of the total production of the
sector. lt should be noted the modality of Capitalisation Products that showed the greatest variation,
96.2%.
ln the Non-Life market, the direct insurance production volume was of 5,4 billion euros, having shown
a positive variation of 4,9% regarding 2020.
The Non- Life cla i ms ratio i m p roved sl ightly in 2O2L, f rom 59,AYo to 58,4%o
ln the main lines of business of this subsector, the following developments were recorded:

Car sales in 2O2L was near 2O2O's level (+1,9%), having the lack of semiconductors, in the
second half of the year, delayed the beginning of the sales recovery comparatively with 2020.
ln the insurance market, this situation contributed for the slow growth in the Motor line of
business (1,3%), recording a negative oscillation in the claims ratio, which went from 57 ,5% to
58,5%;
ln the Health line of business, there was a decrease of 8,4%o, thus confirming the trend of the
previous years, and the claim ratio was of 72,O% comparatively with 66,9%from2O2O;

13.1t2.o
10.0
0.0 20t7

a

a

4 ,ourr.t
APS- Dotabose, frcm Segwdotd, on 2027.72

Sonrce:Bonk oI Pottugol (December 2021)-"goletim Econ6mico"
[Porhqnesel Depafln ent oJl;inance "Relatdrio.lo Orgailrento do Estado 2022"
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a

o

a

o

The Workers Compensation line of business maintained the growth propensity shown in
previous fiscal years, with a positive variation of 6,6%o, showing an improvement in the claims
ratio which was68,9Yo comparatively with the75,Lo/o recorded in2O2O. Despite this production
growth, it should be noted that the growth of this line of business is highly connected to the
economic activity. For that reason, the pandemic impact can still be seen;
Fire and Other Damages showed an increase of 6,8%o, and the upward trend in Multiple Risk
insurance is noteworthy:5,L%. Regarding claims, this line of business had a rate of 45,6%oin
2021, less than the one verified in2O2O, which was of 5O,6%o;
Transports line of business showed an increase of 5,4% and, regarding claims, it showed an
unfavourable evolution, despite not that significant, which was fixed in 32,L% against the
2I,0% of the previous year;
ln the Third Party Liability line of business there was a growth of LO,9Yo, and the claims were
fixed in 36,4yo, comparatively with 43,5o/ofrom2O2O.4. TPIF Douro Group Activity

The only transaction between the Company and the sole Shareholder of the Company, Tosca Coinvest
SCA SICAV-RAIF (Coinvest), was the capital injection that Coinvest made into the Company, to finance
the second tranche of its investment in Caravela - Companhia de Seguros, S.A.
Caravela is the only asset held by the Company and the entire activity of the Group is limited to that
operated by its subsidiary.
All amounts in this report correspond to tOO% of Caravela activity and the conclusions of the analysis
for the 48%held by the Company do not change.
4.1. Main lndicators
The activity of Caravela has been based on, in the last years, a significant and constant rise in
production and on a strong a sustainable balance of its management indicators.
Under the headings of profits and losses, Gross Written Premiums, net of reversals and cancellations,
showed strong growth, of t5,5%o, maintaining the trend of recent years and ending 2021- with a totalof 1L6.380 thousand euros:

n
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Development of direct insurance production in millions ofeuros
t16,4

100.7

20L7 2018 20L9 2020 202t
The claims ratio, net of reinsurance, showed an increase of 4,O pp, regarding the previous year
Regarding the components of the balance sheet, it should be noted that the weight of technical
reserves, which are now 86,30/o of Written Gross Premiums, showing an increase of 7 ,L% comparatively
with the previous year, noting that the Company's growth contributed to this situation.
It is also worth noting that the improvement in Equity, with a variation of +24,4Yo, comparatively with
the same period of the previous year, due to the operation of capital increase performed in December
(10.000 thousand euros).
The net result was of 3.396 thousand euros, representin92,9% of the gross written premiums, allowingfor the continuity of the positive results recorded since 201-5.
There is a slight increase of the combined ratio, reaching 95,6%o, with an increase of L,So/o
comparatively with 2020. lt should also be noted that, despite this slight increase, there was a decrease
of the expense ratio of 2.2 pp.
The following table presents the main indicators for the economic/financial analysis of the Company,
allowing the positive evolution and health of Caravela to be seen, in most of these indicators:

76.459.548.0

140.0
120.0
100.0
80.0
60.0
40.0
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Summary lndicators@@piillffiBalance sheet
Net AssetsEquity*Unearned premiums reserve
Claims reserve
Claims net of reinsurance reserveTechnical provisions
Goins ond losses
Gross written premiums
Earned premiums, net of reinsuranceDirect insurance claims costs
Claims costs, net of reinsuranceOperational costslncomeNet profit
lndicotors
Gross written premiums / no. of employeesDirect insurance claims ratio
Claims ratio net of reinsuranceNet result / gross written premiums
Claims reserves / gross written premiums
Technical reserves / gross written premiums
Net profit / equityNet profit / share capitalCombined ratio

t77 203s8 55023 5437660745294
100 453
116 380
86 006
76 88s
58 55628724

1 659
3 396

875
67,8o/o68,t%

2,gyo
65,8o/o
86,3%

5,8Yo
7,7yo

95,60/o

t43 43647 083
20 368
60 522
35 864
81 156

too7t97L62t
62 5s745 9202s 667

801
3 960

23,syo
24,4o/o
t5,60/o
26,6%
26,3o/o
23,8%

L5,5%
20,1%
22,9%
27,5%7t,9%to7,o%

-L4,2%

12,o%
3,9o/o
6,2o/o

-25,8%
9,5o/o
7,LYo-3r,0%

-33,6%
t,syo

78L
65,2o/o
64,Lo/o

3,gVo
60,ro/o
80,60/o

8,4Yo
77,5%
94,L%

* The share capital was increased by resolution of the General Meeting of 9 July 2019 and consequent authorisation of the
ASF in the 17th of December ZOLg, fot 44.388.315,20 euros, the last instalment of 10.000.000,00 euros having been made in

last December.

4.2. Technical Management
4.2.L, Production and Policies
Caravela closed the financial year of 2O2I with a Gross Written Premiums (GWP) volume of LL6,4
million euros, which represents a production increase of 15,7 million euros and a growth rate of L5,5%
regarding the amount of 2020.
It should also be noted that the market share, including the activity in Portugal and abroad, rose from
L,8% in 2O2O to 2,O% in 2O2L.
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The organic and consolidated growth seen in recent years is based on individuals and small and
medium businesses segments, as well as on rigorous and careful risks underwriting, oriented towards
the profitability of all business lines.
A good performance was maintained, in all lines of business, except for the Marine and Transports
business line, where the effects caused by the pandemic sill show impact, resulting int a decrease of
production of 1^8,L%.
Although with a growth rate above the market, comparatively with previous years, a decrease in the
Motor line of business is seen, +L7,4o/o, below the global growth rate of Caravela. On the other hand,
there is a very positive evolution of the Personal Accidents, Fire and Other Damages, and Workers
Compensation lines of business.
This growth is supported by the continuity of the pre-defined strategy, based on:

o lncreasing the cadence of new production;
o lncrease in the distribution base;
o Underwriting businesses for individuals and micro and small companies;

ln broadening the target segment to medium and large companies, resulting in the capture of
new business within these segments.

ln 2O21, the beginning of Caravela's commercial activity abroad has also contributed to the growth of
the portfolio, especially in the Fire and Other Damages line of business.
The following table shows a variation structure of gross written premiums by line of business, whereit can be confirmed that, except for the Marine and Transports lines of business, all show positive
evolution:

Production Structure and variation
lJ: Euros

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other DamagesMotor
Third Party Liability
Marine and Transports

3t772207 26095 t84 2t,80/o
11,273 602 8 703 919 29,50/o71.428781, 64 t45 LL4 I',J.,4o/o1532182 1318 675 16,20/o

373 474 456004 -Lg,L%@@rGGa
Regarding the structure of the premiums of the portfolio, Caravela presented the same distributiontrend seen in the previous year, maintaining the predominance of the weight of the Motor and

LINES OF BUSINESS 2A2t
GWP

zo20 L2u2O

TOTAL

15
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Accidents and Health lines of business, respectively of 62,4%?fid24,9o/o, these two lines of businesstogether representingST,3% of the gross written premiums.
The following table presents a structure of the portfolio and the weight per line of business regarding
2O2O and 2021:

Portfolio Structure

I'frtt-EMilEilrirsErAccidents and Health
Fire and Other DamagesMotorThird Party LiabilityMarine and Trans rts

67,4o/o

13 93039 L02
283 823

5 6411.322

4,Oyo
7L,4%
82,6%

t,6yo
o,4yo

1.1.892
36 s32250 6324867

1 168

3,9%t2,0%
82,7%t,6%I'lTilHIEEEEl'trlr,rrt 0,4%r@8

The following table shows the relative weight of the several lines of business, in the portfolio structure
of the Company:

Portfolio structure in %

1,304 0,3% 1,3o/o 0,2%
27,3 I! 25,8Yo

8,5%

202t
. i.(1d.r{i JrrJ ileJiti!

f t!rr!j I'.!rly Lrnarilrty

64,2Yo

2020
r fir..lr1d (Jthtr Llir!rlitr Lla!er
, ll.rrra.r1.t lr;ati;i:rlt

9,7%

This development has also led to a significant improvement regarding the analysis in the policy per
employee ratio:

Number of nolicies oer emolovee
2,700
2,600
2,500
2,400
2,300
2,2O0
2,L00
2,000

2,585

2,365

LINES OF BUSINESS

TOTAL

2020 2021
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4.2.2. Claims
The global claims ratio of Caravela in 2O2L, calculated considering the earned premiums, reached
67,tyo, corresponding to an increase of 3,9 pp comparatively with 2O2O's fiscal year, which was set in
65,2%.
ln the fiscal year of 2O2!, the costs with claims had an increase of 22,9% (+14.327 thousand euros in
absolute value) regarding the previous fiscal year, totalling 76.885 thousand euros, before the
allocation of other costs.
Except for the Third Party Liability line of business, which presented a decrease of the claims ratio of60,I% (-673 thousand euros), all remaining business segments had an impact in the increase of
the costs with claims.
It was the Motor line of business that, in absolute value, presented a larger increase in costs, 8.837
thousand euros (+22,L%), but it was in the segment Fire and Other Damages that there was a greater
growth in relative terms, 53,5% (+2.269 thousand euros).
The increase was setin 22,6% (+3.837 thousand euros) in the Accidents and Health lines of business.
There was an increase of a lesser expression of 28,L% (+56 thousand euros) in the least representative
lines of business, Marine and Transports:

Costs with Claims
U: euros

For a more detailed analysis, the following table presents the claim rates by the diverse groups of lines
of business:

Claims ratio

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other DamagesMotor
Third Party LiabilityMarine and Transports

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other DamagesMotorThird Party Liability rts

20797 2556525974
48 859 188

446 4t1,256244

769593474 256 I35
40 02L9L2

1 119 905
200 046

67,9%
50,9%
66,9%
88,6%
44,Iyo

22,6%
53,3%
22,r%

-60,L%28J%

O,6Yo
29,5%
4,3%

-66,3%
55,3%@

68,2%
65,3yo
69,7yo
29,9%
68,4o/o

2021LINES OF BUSINESS 2020 L2tl20

TOTAT 62557 r45

LINES OF BUSINESS 2020

TOTAL 67,8o/o 65,2yo
Marine and Trans
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The increase of the number in claims in2O2L was set in24,7Yo, being the Motor line of business the
one that most contributed to this fact, achieving a growth of 24,5%.
ln the group of lines of business Accidents and Health, the increase was of 38,1% regarding the
previous year; this significant oscillation is directly related to the reduction of the number of claimsthat occurred in 2020, as a result of the general and prolonged confinement verified throughout the
year due to the pandemic, being teleworking mandatory for a significant part of the population.
ln the Fire and Other Damages business line, the increase in the number of claims was reduced, of
only 6,9Yo, following an evolution of the number of policies in force in these lines of business.
With a reduced impact, because there are the least representative lines of businesses, the number of
claims in Third Party Liability increased 55,2% in relative terms and a total of 185 occurrences in
absolute terms, whereas in the Marine and Transports the number of claims was the same as the one
verified in the previous year.
The table in the next page clarifies what is mentioned above:

No. of opened claims

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other DamagesMotor*Third Party Liability

5 494
3 54834 197

520
77

3 979
3 31927 45733s

77

38,L%
6,gyo

24,5%
55,2%Marine and rts o,o%-@* lt does not include Travel Assistance claims.

Regarding 2020, the policies in force had a growth of I2,7Yo, as the number of claims increased 24,Oyo,
thus translating into an increase in the claims frequency rate. To this fact, the reduction of frequency
seen in 2020 due to the general confinement contributed greatly.
Thus, the fiscal year of 202'J, closed with a global claim frequency rate of L3,5%o,3,1 pp higher than in
2020.
However, it should be noted that, in the Motor line of business, the most representative of all business
lines, the increase of the frequency rate was only of I,IYo:

LINES OF SUSINESS 202t 2020

TOTAL 43 836 35 t67

$
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LINES OF BUSINESS

Claims frequencv

Accidents and Health 42,6% 35,7o/o
Fire and Other Damage 9,4% 9,6%Motor t2,8% L2,7%Third Party Liability 9,9oA 7,2%Marine and Transports 6,20/o 7,2%@rc

4.2.3. Reinsurance
ln the reinsurance policy of Caravela there are Proportional and Non-Proportional Reinsurance
Treaties, as well as Facultative Reinsurance and other Reinsurance modalities appropriate to the
protection of the accepted risks.
The reinsurance program, approved by the Company for 2021, suffered small alterations in its
structure comparatively with the previous year, regarding the Reinsurers of 2020 involved in the
treaties.
Regarding the proportional treaties, which encompass the Fire and Other Damages, Marine,
Transports and Engineering lines of business, the retention in the share and the limit of surplus, except
for the Fire and Multi-risk Treaty, where the limit of rose to 7.500.000 euros.
Regarding the Excess of Loss treaties, which encompass the Motor, Personal Accidents, Workers
Compensation and Third Party Liability lines of business, did not suffer any alteration consideringpriority, except for the Motor line of business, whose priority rose to 500.000 euros. ln terms of
capacity there have only been changes in the Motor Treaty - Own Damage, where the aggregate
annual limit has increased to 6.500.000 euros.
The Reinsurers involved are selected considering their reliability and financial solvency, as well as their
service provision, follow-up, and presented availability. ln this line of thought, it was decided to
maintain Nacional Re as leader, in mosttreaties, with a participationof 4oo/o.
This way, in the renewals of the treaties, the minimum rating demanded to a Reinsurer is of "A-",in
accordance with the rating agencies S&P and/or AM Best. The table below shows the range of the
main reinsurers, as well as their rating as at 3L/L2/2O2L:

202! 2020
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REINSURANCE2O2TReinsurer Rating S&P
Nacional Re
CCR Re
Helvetia
QbeHannover Re
R+V
Covea
Odyssey

A
AA
A

A+
AA-
A+
A+
A-

It should also be noted that, regarding Accepted Reinsurance, Caravela held its policy of non-acceptance of this
type of business.
4.3. Financial Management
4.3.L. Financial lnvestments
Financial lnvestments, namely the Property Assets, grew 14.398 thousand euros in202t, translating
in a growth of I5,O% comparatively with 2O2O.
The management of the financial assets, in partnership with OFlAsset Management, has been being
executed in accordance with the investment policy of the Company, guided, as in previous years, by
criteria of prudence, safety, and liquidity, and in compliance with the recommendations either of ASF
(Portuguese lnsurance and Pension Funds Supervisory Authority) or of EIOPA (European lnsurance and
Occupational Pensions Authority).
The following table presents the summary of the situation recorded on the 3L't of December 2O21":

20
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Assets Portfolio
U: thousand euroso/oVarztl20AMOUNTAMOUNT 20202021ASSETS PORTFOLIO

l.REPRODUCTIVE I NVESTM ENTS
Financial Assets

Government bonds
Corporate bonds
Shares and lnvestment Funds
Loans
Liquidity

Sub-total
Other Property Assets

Real Estate
Sub-total

(1)
(1)

(2t

ITI79
46 662
20 090

50
29 747to7 727

to%
43%
19%
0%
28%

LOOo/o

9%
39%
L7%
Oo/o
25%
9oo/o

71967
46 3893062

252
31 660
93 330

L232t232

13%
50%
3%
Oo/o

34o/o
L0Oo/o

12%
47"/o
3/o
o%

32%
95%
t%
to/o

-7%
L%

556%
-80%
-6%
L1o/o

6350/o
635%

9 049
9 049

8%
8%

2/o

Itl?:llI
2. OPERATING I NVESTMENT

ul and Material 2 930 324L 3% -LO%Iriitr EIM@-FrtftlItttlrt-tF(1) Appreciation with accrued interest(2) Fixed-term and Demand Deposits with accrued interest and Treasury Funds

The exposure to government bonds decreased 7,O%o comparatively with 2020, as the exposure to
stocks and investment funds grew L7.028 thousand euros. This exposure is essentially due to the
compliance with the asset allocation strategy established in the investment policy.
Liquidity, between Demand Deposits, Fixed-Term Deposits, and Treasury Funds, remained in line with
2020, justified by the capital increase carried out at the end of the year, being, however, in line with
the risk and capital management parameters.
4.3.2. Financial lnvestments Result
The financial results show, in2O21,, an increase, compared to the same period of the previous year, of
858 thousand euros, +LO7.O%, essentially due to a greater realisation of capital gains and an increase
in the income generated of 135.6%:

Financial lncome@@tffifii#nllnvestment income
lnvestment profit and loss

1 133
s26

48L
321

L35,60/o
64,t%

TOTAL ( t16777 g7./" I 23%

LLg706TOTAL {1} + (2)
2930TOTAL
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Emphasis should be given to the fact that there was no impairment in financial assets during the last
three years, demonstrating the large caution in choosing the application making up Caravela's
investment portfolio.
As to the rate of return, the total asset portfolio registered a positive average remuneration of L.3%.

4.4. Operating Costs
4.4.L. Cost allocation by nature
The total costs by nature to be allocated, reached L4.396 thousand euros, which represents an
increase of 7.7%, compared to2O2O, due to a general increase in both acquisition costs and other
expenses headings:

Costs bv nature
Ll: thousands ofeuros

Personnel expenses
External services and supplies
Taxes and fees
Amortisations for the financial year
Risks and charges reserves
lnterest incurred
Commissions

6737
4 915
1 059
1,357

0
26

308

6 691
4 t73

971
L237

0
29

260

O,6Yo
L7,8%g,tyo

9,7To

-LlF%
L8,3%

7,5%o
-16,7%
ro0,o%

3,to/o
U: thousands of euros

4.4.2. Staff
The number of staff increased by 3.L%, from 129 to 13.329 permanent staff:

Evolution of Staff

Effective staff at the beginning of the period
Entries

Exits
Effective staff at the end of the period

729
10

6
133

72
3

720

t29

Costs by nature 2A2L 2020

TOTAL 14 395 13362 7,7yo

Gross premiums issued I no. of employees 87s I 781
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As can be seen in the following chart, there has been a constant increase in productivity over recent
years, from T8l thousand euros in2O2O to 875 thousand euros in2O2l, mainly due to the increase in
production:

Premiums issued bv emplovee
1,000

900
800
700
600
s00

2020 202t
The distribution by age and gender was as follows:

Aee and gender distribution

Up to 30 years old
From 31 to 40 years old
From 41 to 50 years old
From 51. to 60 years old

Over 6l years old

4.5. Governance
The governance model of the TPIF Douro Group is based on the Caravela model.
On January Lst,2OL6, the Legal Regime for Access and Exercise of lnsurance and Reinsurance Activities
(RJASR) came into force, which adopted a new Solvency regime, this date being defined in Law no.
L47 /2OL5 of September 9th, which transposed into the internal legal order the Directive 2OQ9lt39lEC,
of the European Parliament and Council, of November 25th, 2009.
As already stressed in previous years, the entry into force of the Solvency ll regime has significantly
raised the response requirements in terms of both compliance and disclosure imposed on lnsurance
Companies. ln addition, the requirement to provide accounting, statistical and behavioural

875
78t

5
15
37
7
1

LL
11"
26
15
5

AGE GROUP

TOTAL

AVERAGE AGE
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information, in accordance with the RJASR, shall remain in view of the Regulatory Standard No.
8(2OL6-R, of August 16th, as amended by Regulatory Rule no. LO/2O2O-R of November 3'd.
ln the field of Solvency ll, during 2O2I, several actions have been undertaken, of which the following
are highlighted:

a Participation in the Workgroup sessions of the "Risk Management and Actuarial Services" of
the Technical Committee "Economy and Finance" of the Portuguese Association of lnsurers
(APs);

a Submission of the QRT - Quantitative Reporting Templates to the Portuguese SupervisoryAuthority for lnsurance and Pension Funds (ASF), the former being defined by EIOPA and
managed by the supervisory agencies, regarding the end of year position with the reference
date 31st of December 2O2O and on a quarterly basis for the last quarter of 2O20 and the first
three quarters of 2O2L;

o Reporting of the 2020 Supervision Periodic Report to the ASF, which is provided for in article
35 of Directive 2OO9/L38/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, in article 21 of the
RJASR and in articles 304 to 314 of the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 of the Commission,
of the 10th of October 2014, whose structure and content is specified in such regulation;
Public disclosure of the 2020 Solvency and Financial Condition Report provided for in articles
51- to 56 of Directive 2OO9/L38/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, Article 83 of
the RJASR and Articles 290 to 303 of the Delegated Regulation (EU) 20L5/35 of the Commission;

a Reporting to the ASF of the ORSA 2021 Report for the five-year period 2O2L-2O25.

o

4.6. Solvency Margin
The solvency capital ratio of the Group, verified in 2O2L, increased quite favourably compared to the
same period in the previous year from 287 ,L% to 216,2%.
This ratio was positively influenced by the capital increase carried out in December 2021, despite the
increased capital requirement originated by Caravela's organic growth.
With these numbers, the Group comfortably exceeds the capital target and, consequently, the
regu latory requirement.
The following table shows, on a consolidated basis, the Solvency ll eligible own funds and capital
requirements of TPIF Douro:

u
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Solvencv Capital Requirement
U: thousands of euros

4.7. Share Capital and Results
4.7.L. Share Capital Development
On December 3L, 2O2L,the consolidated capital of the TPIF Douro Group was 29,545.342,59 euros.
Caravela's share capital, was increased by resolution of the General Meeting of the 9th of July 2019
and consequent authorisation by the ASF on the 17th of December 20L9, to 44.388.315,20 euros, the
last instalment amounting to 10.000.000,00 euros having been made last December, which TPIF
contributed with 8.225.002,00 euros.
4.7.2. Result for the 2021 Financial Year
At the end of 2O2I,the consolidated gross result determined wasL.476.705,62 euros, which deducted
from the estimated income taxes, led to a net result t.4O7.285,74 euros.
5. COVID-l9 lmpact and Development to 2022
The effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic felt in 2021- were the extension of the advances and retreats of
the economy provoked by the confinements that resulted from the different variants that appeared.
The impact felt on 2O2L can be divided into 3 great areasl

Reduction of the business volume resulting from the renegotiation and alteration of
agreements in force, as well as the increase of business discounts as a way of customer
retention in this adverse momenU

Solvency Ratio 216,2yo 287,lyo
Eligible Own Funds 2s887 27 737
Solvency Capital Requirement LL975 9 661
Adjustment -3226 -259L
Operational Risk 1 633 1 516
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement 13 557 LO735

Diversification effects -6 4L2 -5 079
Sum of risk components 19 980 15 815

Market risk 3978 2 338
Counterparty default risk L678 L427
Health underwriting risk 4 813 4 391
Non-life undenruriting risk 9 510 7 659
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A direct consequence of moratorium implementation for the payment of insurance premiums
and payment plans negotiation, besides the need of reinforcing the provision levels regarding
receipts to be collected;
The need for reinforcement of the levels of claims reserves for the lines of business of Workers
Compensation and Motor, in order to face the inevitable frequency increase in the post-
Pandemic period.

With the joint effect of the vaccination program and group immunity, it is foreseeable that the
recovery in activity levels in the insurance sector of the pre-Pandemic period is verified from the
second quarter of 2022.
The main priorities for 2022 are:

Maintaining a high-quality level in the satisfaction of our customers' needs;

a

a

o
Develop solutions that can meet the new post-Pandemic challenges, namely inflationary
tendencies;
Adjust the Financial lnvestments policy to a context of rising inflation;
Design a new business strategy as a way to position Caravela regarding the support to
customers and business partners in the post-Pandemic paradigm;
Finally, as social liability is an intrinsic goal of the insurance activity, it is Caravela's intention,in a socially complicated moment like the one we live in, to maintain its commitment to
implementing guiding principles in the areas of social and environmental well-being, either
internally or for the community, progressively adopting the ESG (Environmental, Social, and
Governance) politics.

Additionally, after concluding this report, it should be noted that the Board of Directors is closely
monitoring the development of the current conflict situation in Ukraine and its possible repercussions
on the national and world economy, which, at this date, cannot be reliably predicted. The evolution
and consequences of this conflict may have an impact on the Company's activity.
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Notes to the Anncx Balance sheet as ^t31.t2,2021

Finmcial Year
Previous

finmcial yerGross mount
Impaiment,

depreciatios ,/mortisations or
zdiustments

Net mount

7

6
1.2.2
3.2.2
3.2.2

3.3.1-8

3.3.1-8
9

3.+77
5.1.3

5.7.2-5.1.3

5-1.1-5.1.3

3.9.1-12
3.8.7 3.8.2-3.9.7-12

3.9.7-5.+12
3.8.2 3.9.1 72

21
27

3.9.3

ASSET
Cch, cash cquivalents md demd deposits
Investments in subsidiaries, msociated compmies ud joint ventures
Finmcial usets held for tndingIiinmcial msets clmsifred in initial recognition at fair value thrcugh gains md losscs
Hedgrng detimtives
Awilable for-sale msetsIoms and rccounts receivable
Deposits with ceding compmies
Other depositsloms gmted

Accounts receimblc
Othet

Fleld to-mtutity investments
Lmd md buildings
Orvn use lmd md buildings
Investmcnt properties
Other tmg'ible xsets
Inventory
Assets under right ofuse
Coodpill
Othet intmgible usets
Technical reseses of ceded reinsumcc

Unemed premims resene
Matherotical reserye of the life line of business
Claims reseryePofit shating rescwe
Interest nte comitmcnts rcsetre
Portfolio stabilisation tesene
Other technical reseoes

Post-employment benefit assets md other long-tcrm benefits
Other debtors from insumce opeations md other operationsAccouts receivable from direct insumce opeations

Accounts receiuble from other reinsumce opeations
Accounts recciqblc from other opeationsI'u msets

Curent tu usets
Deferred tu msets
Accruals md defemls
Other assets
Non-curent rosets held for salc md discontinued opeationsTOTALASSET

3 014 321.01 3 014 32\ 01 2 601 706 M
2 402.0( 2 4U.O( 2 400.0c

0.0{ 0.0t 0-0c
0.0( 0-0t 0-fi]
0.0t 0.0c 0.0c

50 325 545.28 u 46644 50 240 674 A8 43 242 241 73
1 391 311.09 0.00 1 391 311.09 1 485 7'19-62

0,0(
1 367 455,0c,

856,0C
0,0c
0,0(

0,0c
1 367 455,09

21 856,0C
0,0c
0.0c

0,m
1 365 039,89

'120 739,73
0,m
0.m00f 00c 0rm

4 343 752.4C 0.00 4 343 752.4C 591 303.51
0,0c

4 343 752.4C
0,0c

4 343'152.4C
0,m

591 303.51
1 4h(,191 '9 597 637,08 808 544,2C 1 043 336.ffi

42 009.21 42009.21 41 5M'35
0.0c 0.0c 0.00
00c 00c off)

2 853 906.31 1 203 421.05 1 650 485-32 I 098 502.70
16 127 q1\ 41 0,00 t6 3n 915,41 12 648 196,67

1 297 621,39
0,0c

15 030 294,02
0,00
0,00
0,00
0.00

1 291 621,39
0,00

15 030 294,02
0,00
0,00
0,00
0.00

813 085,83

1 835 710,83
0,00
0,00
0,00
0.m

0-00 000 om't 928148.9'l 1 133 547.51 6 795 201.45 5 41'I 428.16
7 162725,12

496 M1,39
269 942,46

1 113 688,31
0,0(

1945q21
6 049 036,81

496Ml,39
250 123.25

4 869 5m,31
147 701,44
454 8n,4

406 451-62 0_0( 4O6 451.(t2 5(r0 060 82
386 293,64

20 157 98
386 293,64

20157 9A
149 257,42
410 803,4{)

161 01225 161 012.25 166 805-59
I 326 415,29 I 326 415,29 1 441 324.m

0.00 000
89 533 974.1t 3 019 472.05 86 514 502.13 70 395 237-9c,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (U2I

Board of Managers
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION I2I2I

Note: The retained earnings of Caravela before L January 2OI9 have been treated as Consolidation reserves.
Board of Managers

U: Eurc
Notes to the Annex Belance eheet as at 3ln.mZl Fimcial Yer Ptevious

financial yeat

5.1.3
1.7.1-5.7.2-5.1.3

3.7.2-5.7.3

5.7.3
5.1.3

3.7.4 5.7.3
3.7.3-5.7.3

3.2.3.

3.2.3
3.2.3,3.8.6

3.6,20
3.9.2?o,
3.9.2
3.9.2
21

21
3.9.3

LIABILITYAND EQUITYLIABILITY
Technical resenes

Unemed premium resere
Matherotical resere of the life line of business
Claims teserw

Life
!(orkers conpmsation
Other lines ofbusinessPtofit shating resene

Interest ate comitments resetre
Ponfolio stabilisation reseoc
Equlisation resewe
Unexpited dsks reserc
Other technical tesewes

Financial liabilities of the inswce contracts deposit component and of insunnce contncts and opeations
trcated as inwstment contmcts for accowting purposes
Other fi mcial liabilities

Hedging dedutives
Subordinated liabilities
Deposits rcccived ftom rcinsurers
Other

Post-employment bene6t liabilities md other long-tem bencfits
Other cteditors for insuance q)erations ud other operations

Accounts payable for direct inslrucc opentionsAccouts payable for other reinsurmce opcntions
Accounts payablc fot other opentions'lu liabilitiesCwent ta liabilities
Deferred tax liabilitiesAcculs md dcferals

Other Provisions
Other liabilities
Liabilities ofa disposal gtoup classificd as held for saleTOTALLIABILITY

4A217 t5\7t 1A 954 q6A 22
l1 300 665,91

0,0(
36171 394,02

0,0(
20 312969,2,
16 458 424,'tt

0,0(
0,0(
0,0(

145 495,83
0,0(
00r

9 776 414,28
0,00

29 050 362,23
0,00

16 137 617,29
12 912744,94

0,00
0,00
0,00

l2a 191,71
0,00
000

00f 0,00
915 902.54 I 086 863.52

0,0(
0,0c

254 374,59
661 527,95

0,00
0,00

248 3-16,46
838 48?,06

83 112.22 72 063.'t9
5 069 112 5t ? 731 915 il
2'189 t97,re
1 903 986,9?

375 948.51

2 394 116,38
962 958,11
376 861.02

1 916 384.28 1 726 A25 29
1 896 210,06

20 174-22
I 549 805,11

t'71 020.17
'75n 404 1a 674 \A7 61

0.0c 0.00
16 068.0n 4 646 00

0.0c 0.00
56 969 159-55 46 253 449.9(

ta

23
23

23
23
22

EQUITY
Capital(Om Shares)
Othet capital insrments
Consolidation reseryes

By fair wlue adjustments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venues
By faL value adjustments of fimncial assets
By remlution of own usc lmd ud buildings
By reralution of intmgible assets
By remlution of other tmgrble assets
By fair rzlue adjusments of hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
By fair ulue adjustments of foreign cuaency net investment hedging
Of exchange differences

Defeced tu reserve
Othcr reserves
Results brought fomrd
Result of the fhmcial yerTOTALEQUITY
Minority interestsIOTAI EQUITY AND MINORITY INTERESTSIOTAL LIABILITY, MINORITY INTERESTS AND EQUITY

212 000.00 212 000.0(
00n o0t

20 198739.04 20 15L 214.0(
-7 4\2 017 19 -\ 101 ),n?,gt
7 452 013,19

0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0.00

-3 101 202,91
0,0(
0,0(
0,0(
0,0t
0,0(
0,0(
0.0t

00n 00f
11 461 050.00 3 161 050.0t
1 71R241 04 1 977 \44 41I 407 285.14 1 7 40 732.6t

29 545 142 59 24 141 \42 01
0.00 0.0c

29 545 442.59 24 l4t 342 0?.
86 514 502,13 10 395 231.99
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT OR LOSS 

TPIF Douro Bidco S.à.r.l. 



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

Notes to
the Annex

Pmfit and Loee Accotata ^B ^13''12.m21 Previous
finmcial yerLife'l'echniquc Non Life

Tcchnique Non-l echniquc 'tbtd

13

5.1.1
f.l.l
5.1.1
5.'1.1
5.'1.1
5.1.1
5.1.1
5.1.3

13-18
13-18
13-18
13-18

14
14

3.9.5
3-9.5

Edned premiums net of reiosumce
Gross written premiums
Reinsumce ceded premiumsUnemed prcmiums tcseoc (wtiation)Unemed ptemiums reserc, reinsule$ shde (wriation)Comissioos of insutaoce cootflcts dd opctetions considered foraccountingpurposes as investmcnt

contacts or as seflice contncts
3laims costs, net ofreinsuance

Paid mouots
Goss mouots
Reinsurets sharc

Claims re serc (wiation)
Gross mount
Rcinsuters share

Vlathematidl rcseoc ofthc lifc linc ofbusincss, net of reinsunoce
Gmss mount
Reiosurers share

Profit shring net of reinsurmce\et opentiog costs md expenses
Acquisition costsDefared acquisition costs (uriation)
Administative cxpcnscs
Commissions rnd reinsuance profit sharinq

41 356 172.33 4t 356 112.33 34 419 674 99
55 862 512,1r
13 648 620,48

1 415 508,14
567 788 &

55 A62 512,11B 648 6mA8
1 415 508,14

557 788 fl4

48 3450712:ll 728 7A\t1
2 322 857,3,

1t6 14t tt
0.00 0-00 00t

29 q29 699 A9 ?9 429 699 A9 ?7 151 744 \t
25 075 830.23 25 075 830.23 20 221 032.69
30 t70 529,46

4 694 699 2i 30 770 529,46q 694 699 21
24 r71 295,5al rqo 26? a.44$ 84.65 4 453 869.65 3 130 315.83

7 557 362,61
1 101 49? 94

7 557 362,61
1 107 49294

7 166 098,59
4 0i5 142 7t

r7 304.11 17 3MJ2 t5 202.94
0-00 00r
0,00
0.00

0,0(
0.0(

0-0t 0-0t 00f
9 041n17 11

to 431 a02,6(
181 996,'1(

1 "182 484,1tt 401 047 a1

10 431 802,6(t8t 996,7(I 1A2 4A4,lt
2 401 047,31

9 240 243,5C
-124 850,32

1 627 643,'71t 697 019.UIncome
From intetest of financial 6sets not qlued at fair tzlue through profit and lossFrom interest of finmcixl liabilities not ulued at fair value though pto6t md lossOth€r

Finmcial upenses
Related to interest of financial sscts not ulued at fair ealue through profit md loss
Related to ioterest of financial liabilities not wlucd at fait vrlue thtough ptofit md lossOther

543 614.4t 0-00 543 614.42 270 7AO 64
543 614,8i

0,0c
0-0r

0,00
0,00
0.00

614,81
0,0(
0-0t

230 780,64
0,0c00r1n 111 4' 00n 110 171 4' 142 4i1 1t

150 377,4t
0,0{o0r

0,00
0,00
00n

150 377,4t
0,0c00r

142 433,1t
0,0co0f

CONSOTIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR IOSS ftIzI

Board of Managers
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TPIF Douro Bidco 5.i.r.1.

CONSOTIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (2/2I

Board of Managers

Notes to Prcfit and laee Accowo ^e ^t 31.12.2m1
Finmcial Yea

Previous
finmcial yerLife

Technique
Non-Life

Technique Non Technique Total
15
15

t6
16

3.9.4

21
21

Net profit from finmcial ases md liabilities not valued at fairvalue thrcugh profit md loss
Frcm awilable-fot-sale xsets
From loms md accounts receivable
From held-to-maturity inveshenft
From finmcial Iiabilities wlued at mortised cost
Other

Net profit from finmcialmses md liabilities valued at fairvalue through profit md loss
Net profit ftom finmcial asets md liabilities hcld for tmding
Net profit from 6nmcial asets md liabilities clasified in the initial recognition at lair value thrcugh prontmd loss

Exchmgc differences
Net ptofit from the sale ofnon-finmcial rsets not cldsified 6 non-cuftent ssets held for sale ed
discontinued opemtionsImpaiment losscs (net of revemal)

Ofavailable for sale assetsOf loms md accounts receimble valued atmortised cost
Of held-to-marurity invesmens
OtherOther technical income/expcnses, net of reinsumncc

Other resemes (vriation)
Other income/expensesNqata 2ooduill ianediau! ft.ognited ifl Pnft nd losPtofit md loss frcm asociated compmies ad ioint ventures accounted for using the equity methodProfit md loss from non-cudent noo-cuEcnt asets (or disposal groups) clasified a held for saleNET PROFIT BEFORE TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS
lncome td for the finmcial yed - CuEent ta
lncome tu for the finmcial yer - DeFened wNET PROFTT AFIER TAXES AND BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTSMinority interesbNET PROFIT OF THE FINANCIALYEAR

225 176.9, 0.0( 225 176.9: 8t 645;t,
1 76,9,

0pc
0,0c
0,0c
0.0c

q0(
0,0r
00(
0,0c
0.0r

225 176,9"
0,0{
0,0(
0,0{
0.0(

645,1:q0{
00t
00(
0-0(00f 00r ofr 00f

0pc
0.0c

q0r
0.0(

0,0{

0.0(

0,0t
0.0(

0.0c 0-0t 0-0{ 0-0r

0.0c 0.0c 0.0( 0.0(
-27 378.5C 0.0( -27 378.51 72 9.23,27 378,5(

00c
0,0c
0.0c

0,0(
0,0t
0,0t
0.0t

27 378,5(
0,0(
0,0(
0-0(

0,0(
0,0(
0-0t

0-0c 0-0r 0-0( 0-0f00f o0r oot oor
0.0c -qR1 0!A lq -983 0l8,ll -427 106.58
0.0c 0.0t 0.0{ 0-0c
0-0c 00f 00( 00r00f 00f 00( 00f

1 822 262.34
0,00
0-00

64 323J(
5 ff)1.11

64 323,716N7 It 65 269,1(
16 260 58

2 4\9 1t4 11 -1 0\) 419 0? 1 407 ?Aq7. 1 140 1\1 6t
0,00 0,0c 0,0( 0,0c

2 459 724.71 1 052 439.03 1 407 285.71 1 740 733.6)

6



            TPIF Douro Bidco S.à.r.l. 
                                                                                                                              

 

 
 

7 

      

 

  

RELATÓRIO E CONTAS 
 

Demonstrações Financeiras 
Demonstração de Variações 
do Capital Próprio 

Consolidated - Report and Financial Statements 2021 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES TO EQUITY 

TPIF Douro Bidco S.à.r.l. 



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES TO EQUIW
m2L

Not6 Io STATEMENT OFCHANGESTO EQUITY She Capibl Other cquity Dcf€Fed tuuoffoldaton rc8me Lqal Resulb brcu8ht R€sulb ofrhefinrncielyet'Oiher Toid

0,m

0,m

156 845,96

23

23
23

Bclane sheeis s at3l-l?-dDo
Co.rection ofedors (IAS 8)
Changes in accounting policies
0AS 8)Chaq€d oFniq b.len€
Capital incrcses/dccrcascs
Net pro6t f.om fair €lueadiNhenb of rqilqble-forssle
Adjumens ftom de(erred tax
Increascs in rcscncs through
aUocation ofrcaulb
Distribution of profi ts/loss
Othcr prcfit/loss recoFiseddir€ctly;n equity
Transfcft beNeen equity
headings notincludcd in otlerTotd ch.ng€s ro €quity
Net result ofthe pcriod
Early profi t distribuuonBalane shee! s et3ll22O2l

x2 m0,ffi m 151 2t4,ffi

212 m0,00

,3 101 20zn

-3 10t 202,92

-697 105,93

36531cr''35 156845,96

4 35081028

-7 452013,19 0,00

20 t51 214,6
41 525,n

47 S2S,N

20 t98 ?39,m

3 161 050,00
8 300 000,00

24 141 34293
0,00
0,00

u 141 342,03
I 347 525,00

-697 105,93

156 845,96
0,00
0,00

3 810 55021
0,00

0,00 3 161 050,00 1 9n s48,33 1 140 132,62

0,m 1 917 54a33 1 740732,62

0,m q00 0,00 8 300 000,00

0,00 ll 451 050,00 3 718 281,04 I Atr 8SJ4

0,u)
I 140 732,62
114o132J1

-1 740 t32,62
-t 140132,62t q7 285,'14

3996 7141114U 5:t40,m4 545 v15922 m0,00

?ff20 U: Euro
STATEMENT OTCHANGESTO EQUEY Sharc Capibl Oifter equity Conrolidation r€sed6 Dcf€m€d 6 Leg.l Oth€r R€Bul6 brcught Resulb ofthcfin.ncialyetr Toral

B.latre Bh€ets s et3l-t22rl9
Correcrion of erors (IAS 8)
Changes in accounting policies(r^s 8)
Changcd oFning bdance
Capital incrcases/decrelscs
Net pro6t from fair wlueadiumens of awilable for:ale
Adiusmena from defered tar
Incrcases in rese*es thrcugh
Dishibution of prcfits/loss
Odlcr profi t/los recosised
directly in €quity
Tmnsfea beveen equty
hcadings not included in othe.Tobl chilg€s to equity
Net tesult ofthe period
Eady profit dishibutionBalane sheet I at 3l-lZZ'20

2t2ffi0,m 12s72700,6

212cn0,n

0,00 t 9n 3m,00 0,m 1977 548,33

0,m I 977 54A33

-297nn

,29190,n

456239,U,

t6 659 757 56
0,00
0,00

16 659 157,56
8 81221M,00

45623922

-ruz 650,94
0,00
0,00

-3 425 OW,42

0,00

12 572 t00,ffi
7 578 514,00

1 578 St4,n

z) $l2r4,m

0,m

0,m2

23
2i

toz 650,94

0,m 1921 3n9O
| 233 t50,00

0,00

0,00

-3 5n 651,36

i $tr 41415

-3l0lw1v2
1 233 750,00

3 161 050,00

1 9n 548,33
19n U8,33

-t 977 548,33
-t 977 548,33| 740 732,62

5 ?40 851,85
1 740 732,62

0,00a t4t34\03

702 650,94

0,002
22

0,m

212 000,00 0,00 19?7 548,33 1740734,62

Board of Managers
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.).r.1.

CONSOTIDATED STATEM ENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
U: Euro

Notes to th€Amex Total Total

Fimncial Year Previou6
financial year

23

Net profit ofthe ftnancial year

Other compreheroive income of the finmcial year

Awilable-fot-sale finmcia.l assets
Net plofit md loss
Rcclassification of prcfit md loss in rcsults of tlte finmcial yeu

Impaimcnt
Disposal

'j'aes
Net profit md loss in exchange differences
Post-employment benefi ts
Other movements

Total comprehensive income net oftaxea

t4m 285,74

-853 95tE9

,691 10593
697 10593

0p0
0,00
0p0

156 84sB6
0,00
0,00
0p0

s53 33486

l1n1&62
353 588,28

456 239,22
456 239,22

0,00
0,00
0,00

102 650,94
0,00
0,00
0,00

20E4 320,89

23

10
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.).r.1.

CONSOTIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
U: Euro

2021

-30 471,36--50 e-f5-862r-
-190 643,04

-29 347 471,93-4 510 463,7693 599,04-7 195 234,56-2 548 657,997 216 994,92
0,00-77 092,32

7 216 994,92

-11 092,32

5 770 762,36 5710 762,36

-579,84

2020Opemting ActivitiesCollections from mstomenPayments to supptersPayments to mployeesContributiom for the pemion fundCash generated by opentions
Payment/collection of income tuOthc collections/payments related to the operating activity:Payments of claimsCollections/payments of reinsumnceCollections/payments of co-insuranceCollections/payments of other txes and feesOther collections,/payments related to the operating activity:Cash genented before extraordinaty items

Collections related to extraordinary itemsPayments related to extraordinary itemsCash fmm openting actiuities (1)
Investrnent Activities:Collections fmm:Financial investmmtsTangible AssetsIntmgible assetsInvestment grmtsInttrests and similr profitDividmdsOther collations related to the investment activity
Payments rcgarding:Finan<ial investmentsTaryfble msetsIntmgible assetsOther payments related to the investment activityCash ftom invesanent actiuities (2)
Funding Activities:Collections fiom:lnans obtainedCapital incrmses, supplementary paymmts md shre prmiumsGrants and donationsSale of own sharesCoverage of lossesOther collrctions related to the funding activity
Payments rcgatding:Ioam obtainedAmortisation of leasing contrrctsInterest and similr costsDividmdsCapital decrease and supplmentary paymentsPurchme of own shresOther payments related to the funding activityCash fiom finding acrtuides (3)
Changes in cash md its equivalents (4)=(1)+(2)+(3)
Effect of exchmge differences
Cash and its equivalents in the beginning ofthe period (x)
Cmh and its eouivalents in the end ofthe neriod (*)

48 527 717,86-2 492328,96-3 072 370,08-33 481,9250915867,17 42929 530,90 42929 530,90
-79 872,96

-22 867 426,85-5 825 256,96135 768,00-6 160 355,04-2 428224,74

862,21709,28414,40
56 949-2782-3 227

0,00-579,847 205 902,60

22 955 255,05

5 709 582,52

22217 077,400,000,000,00520 818,77135 986,3927 378,50

0,000,00406 327,203 027,6014,100,00 10052 439,52

23 106 461,04

9 6208 530,72160,00

33 224923,383 669 753,34928 117,66102 588,41 37 925376,79

449,44559,36076,80381,M
227065029158

-1,4 970 1,21,,74

8 300 000,000,00

8 300 000,00

58 947,0037 199,702 885,630,000,000,0017 717,28 116749,61

0,00 7 809 339,00

13 054 027,52

0,00 0,007 809 339,000,000,000,000,00
0,000,00

81! 994,5940 494,721852,320,000,000,0077 712,00 874 053,638 183 250,39 6 935 285,37
419 031,25

0,00
3 966 747,14
4 385 778.39

-409 759,63
0,00

4375 906,77
3 966 747.1+

(t) This line includes Cash, cash equiralents md demand deposits and Other deposits

Board of Managers
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

1. General lnformation
TPIF Douro Bidco S.i r.1., hereinafter referred as the Company, is a private limited liability company
(Soci6t6 i responsabilit6 limit6e) incorporated on 27 June 2019 and is governed by the Articles of
Association and the Laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg in particular the law of L0 August 1915on Commercial Companies, as amended (the "L9I5 Law"). The Company is incorporated for an
unlimited term of existence.
The Company's registered office is located in 20, rue de la Poste, L-2346 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg - R.C.S. Luxembourg: 8235880.
The purpose of the Company is the direct or indirect acquisitions and holding of stakes/interests, in
any form whatsoever, in Luxembourg and/or foreign undertakings, as well as the administration,
development, management and disposal thereof. This includes, without limitation the investment in
and acquisition and disposal of any type of equity or debt instrument in any combination.
The Company may also use its funds to invest in real estate and other real property rights, intellectual
property rights and any other movable or immovable assets in any form or of any kind.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not enter into any transaction that would cause itto be engaged in a regulated activity or one that requires the Company to hold a license or
authorisation which it has not obtained.
On 10 September 2O2O, a resolution was passed to liquidate TPIF SPV 3 LP, the previous sole
Shareholder of the Company, and an in-specie transfer into Tosca Coinvest SCA SICAV-RAIF was
completed. TPIF SPV 3 LP fully liquidated in 2O2L.
Effective from L0 September 2020, the sole Shareholder of the Company is Tosca Coinvest SCA SICAV-
RAIF (hereafter the "Coinvest"), a corporate partnership limited by shares (soci6t6 en comandite par
actions "SCA") having its registered office at20, rue de la Poste, L-2346 Luxembourg, Grand Duchyof
Luxembou rg - R.C.S. Luxembou r g: 8239347 .

On L7 December 202L, additional capital funding was transferred from the sole Shareholder, to
finance the investment in Caravela Companha De Seguros S.A. amounting to €8,300,000 (23 December
2O2O:€L,233,75O) resulting in an increase in share premium.
All amounts in this Appendix to the Financial Statements are in euros, rounded to the nearest unit,
unless expressly indicated another unit.

z



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i,r.l

2. Segment lnformation
The Company's total business comes from insurance contracts regarding the Non-Life line of business
entered into in Portugal, there being only one Geographical Segment; the distribution by business lines
as at December 3L, 2O2L and 2O2O is as follows:

2021
UiEuro

TranaF ted GoodsHeadinS Mlsellansus TOtAtHeallh
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0,00
26,52
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0,00
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0,00
0,00
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0,00
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3. Basis of preparation of the financial statements and accounting policies
A. Accounting policies and valuation rules are, besides the ones laid down by the 2OO2 Law,
determined and applied by the Board of Directors.
Caravela - Companhia de Seguros S.A. is the only consolidated entity and the assumed accounting
policies and valuation rules correspond to those applied in that entity.
B. During the 2021financial year, changes were made to certain accounting standards, namely:
1) IFRS L6 -'Covid-l9 related rent subsidies'
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Given the global pandemic caused by the new coronavirus (COVID-19), lessors have granted benefitsto lessees in respect of lease instalments, which can take different formats, such as the reduction,
write-off, or deferment of contractual lease instalments.
This amendment to IFRS L6 introduces a practical expedient for lessees (but not for lessors), which
exempts them from assessing whether bonuses granted by lessors under COVID-1-9, and exclusively
these bonuses, qualify as modifications to leases.
Lessees who choose to apply this exemption, account for the change to the rental payments, as
variable rental payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition leading to the payment
reduction occurs.
The practical expedient is only applicable when the following conditions are cumulatively met:
. The change in the lease payments results in a revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration immediately before the change;
o Any reduction in lease payments only affects payments due on or before June 30, 2Q2t; and
. There are no substantive changes to other terms and conditions of the lease.
This change is applied retrospectively with the impacts reflected as an adjustment to results broughtforward (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the lessee first applies the change.
Regulation of Endorsement by the European Union: Regulation (EUl2O2O/L434, of October 9.
Effective date: Annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020.
2l IFRS 4 - 'lnsurance contracts - Deferral of application of IFRS 9'
This amendment refers to the temporary accounting consequences that result from the difference
between the effective date of IFRS 9 - Financial lnstruments and the future IFRS 17 - lnsurance
Contracts.
ln particular, the amendment made to IFRS 4, postpones from 2O2Lto 2023 the expiry date of the
temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 with the aim of aligning the effective date of thelatter with that of the new version of IFRS 17, which was subject to amendments in May,2O2O.
This exemption is optional, and only applies to entities that substantially develop insurance activity.
Regulation of Endorsement by the European Union: Regulation (EU) 2020/2097, of December 15.
Effective date: Annual reporting periods beginning on or after January L,2O2I
3) IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 -'Reform of benchmark interest rates - phase 2'
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As the process of reform of the reference interest rates ('IBOR reform') is still ongoing in the differentfinancial markets, the amendments to the standards introduced by the IASB, in this second phase,
address issues that arise in the accounting of financial instruments indexed to these rates due to the
replacement of a reference interest rate by an alternative one, and provide for the application of
exemptions such as:
i) Changes to the designation and documentation of coverage;
ii) Recycling of amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve;
iii) Retrospective assessment of the effectiveness of a hedging relationship under IAS 39;
iv) Changes in the hedging relationships for groups of items;
v) Presumption that an alternative reference rate designated as a risk component not contractually
specified, is separately identifiable and qualifies as a hedged risk;
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2L/25, from January 13.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2O2L.
C. Amendments to the rules that became effective on or after January L,2022
1) IAS 16 -'lncome before start-up'
This amendment is part of the narrow scope amendments (narrow scope amendments) published bythe IASB in May, 2O2O.
With this amendment, IAS 16 -'Tangible fixed assets' will prohibit the deduction of amounts received
as consideration for items sold that resulted from the test production of tangible fixed assets('outputs'), at the book value of those assets.
The consideration received forthe sale of the outputs obtained during the testing phase of the tangible
fixed assets should be recognised in the income statement, in accordance with applicable regulations,
as well as directly related costs.
This amendment applies retrospectively, without restating the comparatives.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 202L|LO8O, from June 28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2022.
2) IFRS 3 -'Reference to the Framework'
This amendment is part of the narrow scope amendments (narrow scope amendments) published by
the IASB in May, 2O2O.
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This amendment updates the references to the Framework in the text of IFRS 3, and no changes have
been made to the accounting requirements for business combinations.
The amendment also introduces references to liabilities and contingent liabilities under IAS 37 and
IFRIC 21 incurred separately versus liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination.
This amendment is of prospective application.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2L/LO8O, from June 28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January I,2022.
3) IAS 37 - 'Onerous contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract'
This amendment is part of the narrow scope amendments (narrow scope amendments) published by
the IASB in May, 2020.
This amendment specifies which costs the entity should consider when assessing whether a contract
is onerous. Only expenses directly related to the performance of the contract are accepted, and these
may include:
i) The incremental costs to fulfil the contract such as direct labour and materials; and
ii) the allocation of other expenses that relate directly to the performance of the contract, for example
the allocation of depreciation costs of a given tangible fixed asset used to perform the contract.
This amendment should be applied to contracts which-at the beginning of the first annual reporting
period to which the amendment is applied-still include unfulfilled contractual obligations, withoutthere being a need to restate the comparative. Any impact should be recognised against results
brought forward at that date.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2021,/tO&O, from June 28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January 'J,,2022.
4) IFRS 16 - "Leases - COVID-19 related rent subsidies after June 30, 202L"
The amendment extends the date of application of the amendment to IFRS 16 -'Leases - COVID-19
related rent subsidies' from June 30, 2O2Lto June 30,2022.
The conditions for the application of the practical expedient remain the same:
i) lf the lessee is already applying the 2020 practical expedient, he will have to continue to apply it to
all leases with similar characteristics, and on comparable terms;
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ii) lf the lessee has not applied the practical expedient to the 2020 eligible rent subsidies, he cannot
apply the extension to the 2020 amendment.
This amendment is applied retrospectively with the impacts reflected as an adjustment to the opening
balance of results brought forward of the annual reporting period in which the lessee first applies thisamendment.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2t/L42L, from August 30.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021, with earlier adoption permitted,
contingent on the adoption of the first amendment to IFRS 16.
D. Annual improvement cycle 2OL8-2O2O
L) IFRS 1-'subsidiary as a first-time adopter of IFES'
Subsidiaries that become first-time adopters of IFRS after their parent, and which choose to measuretheir assets and liabilities at the carrying amounts expressed in the parent's consolidated financialstatements, may measure cumulative translation differences for all transactions denominated inforeign currencies at the amounts that would be determined in the parent's consolidated financial
statements based on the parent's date of transition to lFRSs.
This improvement is of prospective application
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2L/LO8O, from June 28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January 'J,,2022.
2l IFRS 9 -'Derecognition of financial liabilities - costs incurred to be included in the "10 per cent
change" test'
This improvement clarifies that when derecognition tests are performed on renegotiated liabilities,the net amount between fees paid and fees received should be determined considering only the feespaid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received, by either entityon behalf of the other.
This improvement is of prospective application.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2'J./LO8O, from June 28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2022. contracted.

7



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

3) IFRS 16 -'Lease incentives'
The improvement is to amend the illustrative example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 to remove an
inconsistency in the accounting treatment of incentives provided by the lessor to the lessee.
This improvement is of prospective application.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) No.2O2I/L080, from June,28.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2022.
4) IFRS 41-'Taxation and measurement of fair value'
This improvement removes the requirement to exclude tax cash flows from the fair value
measurement of biological assets, ensuring consistency with the principles of IFRS 13 -'Fair Value'.
This improvement is of prospective application
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 2O2L/I080, form June 28
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2022
5) IFRS 17 -'lnsurance contracts (issued on 18.05.2017); including amendments to IFRS 17 (issued
on25.O6.2O2O)'
IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 - 'lnsurance Contracts', the rule has been in force since 2004. IFRS 17 appliesto all entities that issue insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts, and investment contracts with
discretionary participation featu re.
The entities can choose to account pursuant to IFRS L7 or IFRS 15 regarding fixed rate servicecontracts, whose main goal is the provision of services. As provided in IFRS 4, financial collateral
arrangements are allowed to be included under the IFRS 17 since the entity has explicitly classified
them as insurance contracts. The insurance contracts in which the entity holds an insurance policy arenot within the scope of IFRS L7 (exception to ceded reinsurance).
IFRS 17 is based on the current measurement of technical liabilities at each reporting date. The currentmeasurement can be based on a complete (building block approach) or simplified (premium allocation
approach) model. The full model is based on probability-weighted and risk-adjusted discounted cash
flow scenarios and a contractual service margin, which represents the estimated future contract profit.
Subsequent changes in estimated cash flows are adjusted against the contractual service margin,
unless it becomes negative.
During the implementation period and in response to some of the concerns and challenges inherent
in the implementation of IFRS 17, the IASB published in2O2O, specific amendments to the initialtext
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of IFRS L7, as well as proposals for clarification, in order to simplify some of the requirements of this
standard and speed up its implementation.
The changes made have impacts in eight areas of IFRS 17, such as:
i) Scope;
ii) Level of aggregation of insurance contracts;
iii) Recognition;
iv) Measurement;
v) Modification and derecognition;
vi) Presentation of the Statement of Financial Position;
vii) Recognition and measurement of the lncome Statemen! and
viii) Disclosures.
The main changes introduced to IFRS 17 relate to:
. expected recovery of cash flows from the acquisition of assets by insurance contracts;
o contractual service margin attributable to investment services;
. exclusion from scope of certain credit card (or similar) agreements, as well as some financing
agreements;
o presentation of insurance contract assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position inportfolios rather than groups;
. applicability of the risk mitigation option, when using reinsurance contracts held and non-derivative
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss to mitigate financial risks;
o accounting policy choice to change estimates made in prior interim periods when IFRS 17 applies;
. inclusion of income tax payments and receipts specifically attributable to the policyholder under the
terms of the insurance contract (as to cash flow compliance); and
o practical transition arrangements.
IFRS 17 is retrospective in application with exemptions provided for the transition date.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Regulation (EU) 202I/2036, from November 19.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2023.
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E

L)
Amendments to standards published by IASB not yet endorsed by the EU
IAS 1 -'Classification of liabilities as current or non-current'

Clarification on the classification of liabilities as current or non-current balances depending on the
rights that an entity must defer their payment, at the end of each reporting period (the standard no
longer makes reference to unconditional rights, as loans are rarely unconditional on the fulfilment of
specific conditions).
The classification of liabilities is not affected by the entity's expectations (the assessment should
determine whether a right exists but should not consider whether the entity will exercise that right),
or by events that occur after the reporting date, such as the breach of a given covenant.
Further clarification is provided regarding the meaning of 'liquidation' of a liability, which is now
defined as the extinguishing of a liability through transfer:
i) Cash or other economic resources; or
ii) The entity's own equity instruments.
This amendment applies retrospectively.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Pending endorsement.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2023.
2) IAS L -'Disclosure of accounting policies'
Change to the disclosure requirements of accounting policies that are now based on the definition of'material' instead of 'significant'.
lnformation about an accounting policy is considered material if, in its absence, users of the financial
statements would be unable to understand other financial information included in the financial
statements.
lmmaterial information regarding accounting policies need not be disclosed.
IFRS Practice Statement 2, was also amended to clarify how the concept of 'material' applies to the
disclosure of accounting policies.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Pending endorsement.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January t,2023.
3) IAS 8 -'Disclosure of accounting estimates'
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lntroduction of the definition of accounting estimate and how it is distinguished from changes in
accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are now defined as monetary amounts that are subject to measurement
uncertainty used to achieve the objective(s) of an accounting policy.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Pending endorsement.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2023.
4l IFRS 12 -'Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities associated with a single transaction'
IAS 12 now requires entities to record deferred tax on certain specific transactions when their initial
recognition gives rise to equal amounts of taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary
differences.
The subject transactions relate to the registration of:
i) Assets under right of use and lease liabilities;
ii) Provisions for dismantling, restoration, or similar liabilities with corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related asset when, at the date of initial recognition, they are not
relevant for tax purposes.
These temporary differences are not within the scope of the exemption of initial recognition of
deferred taxes.
The cumulative effect of the initial application of this amendment is recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of results brought forward (or other component of equity, as appropriate) of the
earliest comparative period presented.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Pending endorsement.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January L,2023.
5) IFRS 17 -'lnitial application of IFRS L7 and IFRS 9 - comparative information"
This change applies only to insurance companies in their transition to IFRS L7, allowing the adoptionof an 'overlay' in the classification of a financial asset for which the insurer does not applyretrospectively, under IFRS 9. The amendment aims to avoid temporary accounting mismatches
between financial assets and liabilities of insurance contracts, regarding the comparative informationthat must be presented on initial application of IFRS t7, and is expected:
i) lts individual application for each financial asse!
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ii) The presentation of comparative information as if the classification and measurement
requirements of IFRS t had been applied to the financial asset, however without the requirement to
apply the impairment requirements of IFRS 9;
iii) The obligation to use reasonable and supportable information available at the transition date
to determine how the insurer expects that financial asset to be classified under IFRS 9.
European Union Endorsement Regulation: Pending endorsement.
Effective date: Annual periods beginning on or after January 1.,2023
F. Basis of preparation of the financial statements
Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 3L, 2021 have been prepared in accordance withthe provisions of the Plan of Accounts for lnsurance Companies (PCES), approved by Regulatory
Standard no.IO/2O16-R, of September L5, from the Supervisory Authority for lnsurance and Pension
Funds (ASF).
The figures in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss for 2O2L and 2O2O are comparable with each other.
The Consolidated Financial statement of TPIF Douro Bidco s.i.r.l. as ate December 3L,2O2L, are not
compliant with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)as adopted by European Union.
However, the figures presented for 31 for 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2O2L, respect thelnternational Financial Reporting Standards, with the following exceptions:

IFRS 4 - lnsurance Contracts - were only the principles of classifying the type of insurance
contracts have been adopted.
IFRS 3 - Business Consolidation - were Caravela has been consolidated tought proportional
consolidation at 48% ownership.
IFRS 3 - Business Consolidation - were adjustments related to the elimination of investment
in Caravela are presented in equity under "Consolidation Reserves".

lncome and expenses are recognised in the financial year to which they refer, regardless of the date
in which they were paid or received, in accordance with the accrual accounting principle.
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost principle, exceptfor available-for-sale financial assets and investment properties, which are registered at fair market
value.
Given the fact that direct insurance premiums are recognised as income at the time of issue or renewalof the corresponding policy, and claims are registered upon their reporting, certain accruals are
undertaken in accordance with the accounting policies specified below, that have been applied
consistently for the periods indicated.

o
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3.1. Cash and cash equivalents and demand deposit
ln the Cash Flow Statement, the amounts registered in the Balance Sheet, which include cash value
and cash equivalents available in banks, are easily convertible into cash.
3,2. Financialinstruments
3.2.L. Available-for-sale financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets at the time of their initial recognition and according to their
purpose, particularly in 'Available-for-sale financial assets'. The Company intends to hold these assets
indefinitely and not classified them as held-to-maturity investments.
Such assets are initially recognized at fair value, including transaction costs, and subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized in the Revaluation Reserve in equity.
The fair value corresponds to the value at which these assets can be traded under normal conditions
of active markets.
ln accordance with IFRS 13, financia I assets ca n be va lued at fair value according to one of the following
levels:

Level 1 - Fair value determined directly with reference to an active official market.
Level 2 - Fair value determined using valuation techniques based on observable prices incurrent markets for the same financial instrument.
Level 3 - Fair value determined using valuation techniques that are not based on observable
prices in tradable current markets for the same financial instrument.

The Company's financial assets are spread across Levels 1 and 3
At the time of disposal or recognition of impairment, changes in fair value are registered in costs or
income for the financial year against shareholders' equity.
The Company adopts the criteria of recognition of impairment whenever there is a continuous
devaluation of more than 180 days or a devaluation of significant value, when above 3O% of the
respective price, in the case of capital instruments.
ln debt instruments, impartment is recognized when there is a significant financial difficulty of the
issuer, becoming probable bankruptcy proceedings or a breach of contract due to default in interest
or capital payments.
lmpairment losses on equity instruments cannot be reversed, and thus any potential gains arising after
the recognition of impairment losses are registered in the Revaluation Reserve. When potential losses

a
a
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are subsequently calculated, impairment is considered, which shall be taken into account in the
income statement.
lnterest on debt instruments is recognized in the income for the year and is specialized according tothe time elapsed up to the end of the year, being calculated by the effective rate method andregistered in lncome, where dividends from equity instruments are also recognised when the
Company's right to receive them is known.

3.2.2. Loans and Accounts receivable
It comprises unquoted financial assets in an active market, including fixed-term deposits in credit
institutions, allocated to insurance contracts, initially recognized by their fair value which correspond
to their nominal value, and the loans granted.
The balance of the item Other Deposits and Loans Granted on December 31, 2O2L,by maturity, is as
follows:

U: Euro
Amount iOther Deposits and Loans Granted Expiry date Term (days)Start

Term Deposit:
Millennium BCP
Banco Carregosa
Bankinter
Bankinter

Empr6stimos Concedidos:
Presta g6es Suplementares COLMENA

20.L7.202L
!9.07.202L
26.t2.202L
24.o4.202r

L9.1t.2022
L8.0L.2022
25.O3.2022
27.04.2022

365
185
90

365

287 3tL,02
LL7 652,92
960 000,00

2 49I,L5
1 367 455,09

23 856,00
23 855,00

1 391 311,09
* - lncludes interest

3.2.3. Financial liabilities
The Company classifies an instrument as a financial liability when there is a contractual obligation to
settle it.
Financial liabilities consist of deposits received from reinsurers and operating lease transactions in
accordance with IFRS 16, which came into effect on 01.01.2019.
These liabilities are derecognised when they are settled or extinguished, and had the following
breakdown, by year:

L4



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

Deposits received from Reinsurers
Premiums
Claims

Operating Lease (IFRS 16)
Transport Equipment
Leased Buildings

0,00
254 374,59
254374,59

77 597,96
583 929,99
661527,95

U:Euro

0,00
248376,46
248376,46

78 185,18
760 301,88
838 487,06

3.3. Land and Buildings
3.3.1. lnvestment properties
During the current year, on February 26, the Company acquired a business venture comprising twelve
pavilions for commerce/industry, located at Estrada Nacional 1-0, km 739.L, in S5o JoSo da Talha, part
of theParishCouncilsof Santalriade Az6ia,sSoJo6odaTalhaandBobadela,inthemunicipalityof
Loures, comprising twelve units designated by the letters 'A' to 'L', for a total acquisition value of
6,760,O0O euros.
The Company maintains in its assets the property acquired in2OL6, constituted by the building units
designated by the letters 'V','X','Z','AA', 'AB', 'AC' and 'AD', which are part of the urban building
located in Praga Conde de Agrolongo no. 161to 183, parish of Braga (S5o Jos6 de Sdo LAzaro and S5o
JoSo do Souto), municipality of Braga, for the overall price of 'J.,L4O,OOO euros. The property is written
in the accounts for 1,231,882 euros.
Both properties were classified as investment properties and valued according to the terms of IAS 40,
and therefore not depreciated.
3.4. Other tangible and intangible assets
At the time of the initial recognition of these assets, the Company capitalizes the purchase value and
the expenses incurred which are required so that assets shall be placed in service, in accordance with
rAs 16.
Tangible assets useful life varies according to the expected time to achieve future economic benefits
These assets are gradually depreciated during those periods.

2021 2020

Total balance sheet 915 902,54 1 086 863,52
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Costs incurred in the acquisition of intangible goods (software), as well as the expenses of their
implementation, are also capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
life of three years, and for a period of six years for acquisitions occurring from 2015 onwards.
Software maintenance costs, when incurred, are directly recognised in Results as financial year costs.
Such goods are reversed at the time of disposal or when they cease to produce economic benefits,
and profit or loss are directly recognised in the lncome statement.
The Company verified a possible impairment loss of this type of goods, according to the terms of IAS
36 and IAS 38 and concluded that this group of goods is duly valued to the date of the financial year
closure, continuing to provide the expected economic benefits.
3.5. Profit tax
The Company is subject in Luxembourg to the applicable generaltax regulations.
Caravela is subject to Corporate lncome Tax at the rate of 2L% plus 1.5% of Local Tax, current tax
calculated based on taxable income for the financial year and after deduction of tax losses calculated
in previous financial years and subject to such deduction.
To the accumulated rate of 22.5% of Corporate lncome Tax an additional 3% charge is added
corresponding to the state tax, under the terms of Law 66-B/20t2, of December 31, which is the
percentage that corresponds to the bracket of taxable income of Caravela (over L,500,000.00 euros
and under 7,500,000.00 euros).
As taxable profit usually differs from the accounting result, deferred taxes with effect on payable or
recoverable tax in subsequent years and which correspond temporary taxable differences or
deductible between the balance sheet values and tax base are calculated. Such deferred taxes are
usually calculated at the rate in force on the balance sheet date.
The deferred tax in the Company corresponds to net gains and impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets, as well as deferred tax assets for tax losses.
3.6. Employee Benefits
A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan
ln this Pension Plan there is only one retired former administrator who receives a retirement pension
Further information is disclosed in note L9.
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B. Defined Contribution Pension Plan
The financing vehicle of this Plan is 'Zurich Life Open Pension Plan for Companies' of Zurich Vida, S.A.
(Fund No. 287), which covers allthe Company's employees in a homogeneous manner since the 2019
financial year.
This Fund is now constituted under the terms of the Company Agreement and, as a result, the
employees who were not included in this Plan have been covered by it since January L,20L9.
Additional information is also disclosed in note 19.

C. PermanencvAllowance
According to clause 42 of ACT 2016, published in the Bulletin of Work and Employment no. 4, of
January 29, verified the requirements mentioned in clause no. 42 of ACT 2016, whenever the
employee, completes one or more multiples of five years of service in the Company, is entitled to
receive a single premium corresponding to 50% of his monthly salary, in monetary expression, or in
kind (granting of days of leave with pay).

3.7. Technical Reserves for direct lnsurance and Granted Reinsurance
The following paragraphs describe the Technical Provisions of the Non-Life
3.7.L. Direct lnsurance Unearned Premiums Reserve
The reserve for unearned premiums is based on the assessment of premiums written before the endof the financial year that expire after that date. lt is intended to cover the risks undertaken by the
Company from the end of the financial year until the expiry of the corresponding insurance contracts,
reaching a total of 13.468.144 euros before deducting deferred acquisition costs (in 2020 the amount
of this reserve was L2.042.636 euros).
The reserve is calculated by using the pro-rato temporis method applied to each premium written for
each existing contract and for all lines of business, deducted from acquisition costs also attributableto subsequent years in the same proportion as the premiums.
3.7.2. Direct lnsurance Claims Reserve
The claims reserve corresponds to the estimated amount of claims charges resulting from insurance
contracts, whether declared or not on the closing date, and which are outstanding, including estimatedliability for claims incurred during the period but not reported (IBNR), or already reported butinsufficiently reserved (IBNER). lt also includes administrative costs to be incurred with futuresettlement of claims in management or not yet reported.
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These reserves are reviewed on a regular basis as the Company's liabilities are settled to maintain an
adequate provisioning level or to be compatible with existing liabilities.
Its estimated amount in the financialyear was36.771.394,02 euros, compared to 29.050.363,23 euros
in2O2O; this amount includes 229.742,OO euros (L85.593,00 euros in 2020) of future expenses reserve
with occurred claims management.
3.7.3. Unexpired Risks Reserve
Unexpired Risks Reserve corresponds to the necessary amount to cover possible compensation and
charges likely to arise after the end of the financial year, which exceed the amount of unearned andfuture premiums on existing contracts at the date of the financial statements.
The amount of the said reserve is equal to the product of the gross written premiums total attributable
to future financial years (unearned premiums) and unpaid premiums on existing contracts, by the totalof claims, expenses, and yield ratios, subtracting investments ratio, deducted from a unit and the
unexpired risks reserve is created and/or uplifted whenever the total of the ratio exceeds '1'.
As a result of applying strict underwriting criteria to the business, the Company again had no need to
register a provision for ongoing risks in the year.
3.7 .4. Equalisation Reserve
This reserve is set up to address the risk of Earthquakes in insurance lines of business where, due totheir nature, high disturbances are expected: Fire, Multi-Risk, Housing, and Commercial and
Associative Activities.
It is calculated by applying a risk factor, defined by the Supervisory Authority for lnsurance and Pension
Funds, for each seismic area, to the capital retained by the Company.
At the end of 2021, the amount registered for this reserve was 145.495,83 euros, compared to
L28.L9L,7 I eu ros in 2O2O.
3.7.5. Mathematical Reserve
Mathematical reserves determine the current value of Company's future liabilities, which are
calculated based on actuarial methods, underthe laws in force.
3.7.6. Technical Reserves of Ceded Reinsurance
It comprises the Reserves for Claims and Unearned Premiums Reserve, determined by applying the
criteria described above for direct insurance, considering the types of treaty reinsurance and the
conditions therein expressed, such as yielding percentages and other clauses, and corresponds to the
reinsurers share of responsibility in the total responsibilities of the Company.
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3.8. Adjustments and Accruals
3.8.1. Adjustments for Receipts to be Collected
The purpose of the adjustments carried out was reduce the total amount of the premiums to be
collected to the estimated realisable value.
Receipts issued but not collected at the end of the year are included within the heading 'Accounts
Receivable from Direct lnsurance Operations' and the adjustment amount is shown to be deducted
from the assets ofthe balance sheet.
The payment scheme for insurance premiums provided for in the Legal Framework for lnsurance
Contract approved by DL no.72/2OO8 of April L5, amended by Law no.L47/2O15, of Septemberg,
determinesthat the non-payment of the initialpremium on the due date, orthe initialfraction, impliesthe automatic termination of the contract with effect from the date of its conclusion. lt further
determines that the non-payment in subsequent annuities precludes the renewal of such contracts,
with the result that these premiums are written off when they have not been collected.
The effect that the Covid-19 pandemic had on the payment of insurance premiums by policyholders
continued to have a major impact on the level of effective collection during 2021. As a result, there
was a need to reinforce the amount of adjustments of receipts pending collection determined in the
2O2t financial year, which was 1.069.306,56 euros (34L.784,OO euros in 2O2Ol, equivalent to 1S% of
gross premiums written net of reversals and cancellations (O.7o/oin2O2Ol.
3.8.2. Adjustments for Doubtful Debts
The provision for doubtful debts is constituted when there is a litigation on outstanding balances of
"lnsurance intermediaries" and "Other debtors".
The overall balance of the headings 'lnsurance intermediaries' and 'Other debtors' decreased by
7.454,88 euros during the financial year, and therefore the overall amount of adjustments at the date
of the Financial Statements is 64.240,80 euros (71.695,68 euros in2O2O).
3.8.3. Deferred acquisition costs
Acquisition costs that are directly or indirectly related to the sale of insurance contracts are capitalised
and deferred during the contract's validity.
As at the end of the financial year, said costs totalled 2.L67.478,40 euros (in 2020 they were
2.27 6.22'J,,92 e u ros).
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3.8.4. Agent and Brokers Commissions
These are represented by the amount contractually allocated to the agents and brokers, by the raising
and collection of insurance premiums, and registered as a cost when processing premiums receipts.
This heading includes the accrual of commercial incentive commissions payable to intermediaries in
the first quarter of the following year, after the final calculation of results by intermediary, which is
made at the beginning of the following year, and provided that the commercial production, claims,
and collection targets set out in the protocols with the intermediaries are met.
The amount of production incentive commissions for Z0?L-payable to the agents and brokers within
the first quarter of 2022-of 274.497,L2 euros was recognised in the financial year.
3.8.5. Liabilities for holiday pay and holiday subsidy
Liabilities for holiday pay and holiday subsidy are included in the heading 'Accruals and Deferrals' of
the liability, corresponding to two months of remuneration and their charges, based on the year values
plus planned increases. They are intended to recognise legal responsibilities at the end of the financial
year, which are regularised subsequently for services rendered by employees until December 3L,202L.
3.8.5. Leases
The Company classifies lease agreements as finance leases or operating leases according to the
underlying asset and the right of control over that asset.
Operations are classified as finance leases when the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset have been transferred to the lessee, the financial charges being recognised in the income
statement in the period to which they relate, and the amount of depreciation deducted from liabilities,
all other lease transactions being considered as operating leases.
The Company has concluded the following financial leasing contracts

Two contracts in January 2OL8 with Banco BPl, relating to transport equipment (vehicles)-for
a period of sixty months-at a variable interest rate of L.375%;
A contract in October 20L9 with the rental company Mercedes-Benz Financial Services for the
acquisition of a car-for a period of sixty months-at a variable interest rate of 3.84O4%;
A contract in January 2020 with Banco BPl, relating to transport equipment (one vehicle)-for
a period of sixty months-at a variable interest rate of L.43%.

Payments made under these leasing contracts are recorded by the Company in third party accounts,
the amounts relating to the reimbursement of capital, and in costs the interest for the period to which
they relate.

a

a

a
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The aforementioned assets shall be subject to depreciation and the depreciation policy used is
consistent with other depreciable assets held by the Company. The recognised depreciation is
calculated in accordance with IAS 16.
With the entry into force of IFRS 16-Locations on January L,2O!9, the Company has the right to use
an underlying asset against a liability for future payments associated with the use of that asset.
IFRS 16 does not cover leasing contracts with a duration of less than 12 months or underlying assets
with a value of less than USD 55,000.
ln the initial measurement the liability is recognized at the beginning of the operating lease contract
at the present value of future payments, and the right to use the asset is measured at cost, at the same
value as the liability.
ln subsequent estimates the liability is measured using the effective interest rate method and the right
of use (asset) depreciation is recognized.
The following tables reflect the impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16-Leases on the Company's accounts
on the transition on 3L.L2.2O2L:

Real Estate
Vehicles

1 541 815,23
158 903,76

7 543 962,26
762 445,79

0,00
108 183,79

363 477,96
704 346,75

14 158,55
5 850,08

367 447,44ro9 407,17
7 774 394,27

158 740,80
r 2L6 520,82r6L 662,41

3.9. Breakdown of Other headings in the Financial Statements
3.9.1. Other debtors by insurance operations
As at December 31, 2O2L and 2020 this heading presented the following composition

New Leases
2021

Right of Use Financial Liabilities
37-12-2020 Right of Uselnterest Expenses 31-12-2021Amortisatlon

Financial Liabililies
Financial Liabilities

31-72-2021
Depreciation
tinancial year

7700720,00 L7468,,8,O6 x08 183,79
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Accounts receivable from direct insurance operations:
Receipts to be collected:

Workers Compensation
Fire and Other damage
Motor
Other lines of business

Claims reimbursements:
Workers Compensation
Fire and Other damage
Motor
Other lines of business

Agents and brokers:
current accounts
Receivable comissions

Coinsu rers:
Current accounts
Other balance

Other:
Other balance

Adjustments for receipts to be collected
Adjustments for doubtful debts

Accounts receivable from ceded reinsurance operations:
Current accounts
Adjustments for doubtful debts

Accounts receivable from other operations
Personnel
Workers Compensation Fund
Other sundry debtors
Adjustments for doubtful debts

1r82 L75,O7
550 480,35

2 406 479,L4
49t634,99

4640769,56
26096r,77

3 624,t4
7 432 540,39

57 053,96
1 754 L79,67

727 662,68
37 694,48

759 t57,L6
4 3L2,24
4 078,89
8 391,13

27,6r
27,6L

-1 069 306,52
-44 387,79

-1 113 58&31

496 041,38
0,00

495 041,38

15 505,37
2 540,35

251936,74
-L9 859,2L
250L23,25

[J:Furo

968 288,95
256564,75

1 423 582,68
300 388,02

2 948 923,80

358 125,81
t7 400,20

1 162 095,85
5ro87,74

1 582 709,60

583 950,52
35 990,57

7L995L,L9

7 550,95
3946,13

L! 497,O8

39,46
,9,46

-347784,20
-51 836,62

-393 520,82

r47 700,44
0,00

L47 LOO,44

7856,12
3647,52

469 782,98
-r9 859,27

454827,4O

6 049 036,81 4 869 500,31

2021 2020

Total balance sheet 6 795 20t,45 5 47t 428,16

On December 31, 2O2L, and 2020, receipts to be collected presented the following seniority:
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U:Euro
2021 2020

Up to 30 days
From 31 to 90 days
From 91 to 180 days
From 181 to 360 days
More than 360 days

t757 07r,20
IL65 653,L2

943 227,84
553 793,76
22t023,68

L 22s 363,49
803 133,05
691580,42
94 181,56

134 665,28

Receipts for collection with more than 30 days refer to businesses placed in coinsurance and insurance
contracts concluded with public entities and municipalities, which by their nature have specificpayment deadlines, as well as the moratorium granted by the Company in accordance with the
legislation in force, mentioned in note 3.8.1..
3.9.2. Other creditors by insurance operations
This heading registered the following amounts as at December 3L, 202L and 2O2O:

U:Euro

Accounts payabl€ for direct insurance operations:
Agents end Brokers:

Current accounts
Payable commissions

Coinsurers:
Current accounts
Other balance

357 679,29
236775,4O
s94 39s,09

33 136,2s
973,52

34109,77

228956,65
792L77A,22
2 150 134,87

10 556,37
2 789 196,10

94,72
354 70r,76

21,752,01
375 948,51

299 068,33
84 272,77

383 341,10

26834,79
678,50

27 5Lt,29
33s 764,04

7 644 742,37
1 980 506,41

2755,49
2194 tt6,29

1 358,99
352632,94

22 869,LO
37646'-,02

Policyholders:

Premiums received in advance

Other (claims reimbursements):

Accounts payable for ceded reinsurance operalions;
Current accounts

Accounts payable for other op€rations:
Personnel
Suppliers
Other sundry debtors

r 903 986,97 962 95E,11

Total 4640769,60 2948923,80

2021 2020

Belance sheet s 069 131,58 t733935,42
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3.9.3. Accruals and deferrals
As at December 3L, 2O27 and 2O2O, accruals and deferrals of assets and liabilities were composed as
follows:

U:Euro
2A2L 2020

Deferred Expenses
lnsurances
Rents and leases
lT services
Activity contributions
Other expenses

33722,8L
6979,03

87 823,60
0,00

32 486,87

t3 687,O7
t8367,28
51 069,88

402,24
83 279,r2

Total balance sheet L6LOL2,25 166 805,59
U:Euro

2021 2020
Expenditure accruals

Payable interest
Remuneration payable to personnel (holidays and allowance)
Charges on payable remuneration
Bonuses to be paid to personnel
Payable comissions
Other accruals

0,00
322 467,07

79 828,23
0,00

284 3s1,68
44828,42

0,00
307 560,29
76042,20

0,00
231,310,74
59 674,39

Total balance sheet 73t 475,40 674587,63
U:Euro

202L 2020
Deferred lncome:

Rents and leases 18928,75 0,00

Under the commission item 'Commissions payable' of 284.351,52 euros relates to intermediate
commissions of 274.497,I2 euros and 9.854,40 euros of investment banking commissions payable in
2022.
The heading 'Other accruals', in the amount of 44.828,64 euros, includes the accruals of the year,
supplies and external services.

Total balance sheet L8928,75 0
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3.9.4. Other income/expenditu re/adjustments
The breakdown of other income, other expenditure and other adjustments as at December 3t,2O2L
and 2O2O is detailed on the table in the page that follows:

U:Euro

lncome and non{urrent gains
Settlement of advance payments (previous years)
Debt recovery (previous yea6)
Other

lncome and financial gains
Other

0,00
4892,47

72797,43
17 68t,90

9 397,74
939L,74

103,85
103,85

-2 540,00
0,00

-1 561,58
-2777,94

-7 224,OO
0,00

-35 075,97
-14 831,00
64 051,50

-0,10
-3 424,55
-1424,U

-727 522,32
7 454,84

-720067,44

30 305,71
0,00

37299,79
61 60s,90

8 13440
8 134,40

r824,78
1824,78

-240,00
-24000,23

-102,69
-872,47

-5 532,00
-r273r,44
-16 253,15

-960,00
60 641,99

-8,27

-E,27

-277 713,77
-943,68

-278 556,86

Other non-technical income
Other

Expenses and non*urrent losses
Donations
Patronage
Accrued fines and penalties
Various contributions
Other

Rents tenants (Covid-19)
Tangible asset losses
Powerful caravel
Various

Expenses and financial losses
lnterest paid
Other

Adjustments
for receipts to be collected
for other debtors

0,00

3.9.5. Financial expenditure
The breakdown in the 202'J, and 2020 financial years was as follows:

t50 377,48
0,00

t50 377 ,48
0,00

L42 433,L0
0,00

U:Euro

r42 433,LO
0,00

202t 2020

-760 36409 -267 742,A3

Technical
Account

202L
Non-technical

Account Technical
Account

2s20
Non-technical

Account
UNES OF SUSTNESS/UNES OF BUS|NEgSGROUpS Total Total

lnvestment expensesi
Allocated costs
Other investment expenses

15o377,48Total 0,00 ts0377,48 L424tt,to 0,00 142433,tO
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4. Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements now presented reflect the assets, liabilities and results of TPIF
Douro Bidco S.d.r.l. and the results attributable to the Group related to the financial participation in
Caravela - Companhia de Seguros S.A..
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed toor has rights to the variability of the returns generated by its involvement with that entity and maytake possession thereof them through its power over that entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which the group
acquires control until the date on which control ceases.
Associates
All companies over which the Group has powers to exert significant influence over their financial andoperational policies, though it does not exercise control over them, are classified as associates. The
Group is normally presumed to exert significant influence when it is empowered to exercise more than
20%of the associate's voting rights.

TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l. hold a qualified holding correspondingto 48% of the shares representing the
share capital and voting rights of Caravela - Companhia de Seguros S.A., but the lnsurance and Pension
Funds Supervisory Authority considers that there is a control of the company as if it were a subsidiary.
As agreed with the Supervision, consolidation will be carried out using the Proportional ConsolidationMethod. This method consists of the line-by-line aggregation of the financial statements of theentities, consolidated and consolidating, on the basis of the percentage held, without presenting
minority interests.
Consolidation Perimeter

Caravela - Companhia de Seguros, S. A. PORTUGAL Proportional
TPIF Douro Bidco S.i r.l. LUXEMBOURG Parent

48,W% 8,OO% 48,00% Dominant

The reporting date of the consolidated financial statements corresponds to parent company reporting
date, December 3L, 2O2L.

% used to
establish

consolidated
accounts

lnfluence criterion
% of CapitalCompany Country Consolidationmethod lnfluencelevelYovoling

rights
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lff"tTffition and financial information related to the associates are presented in the foilowing

de s. A. 777 203 143 436 118 652 95 3s3 s8 550 47 083 3 396 3 9605. Nature and extent of headings and risks arisi ng from insurance contracts andreinsurance assets
5.1. Amounts disclosed in the financial statements resurting from insurance contracts5.L.1. Claims reserve

a) The amount of ctaims Reserve as of December 3L, 2021, resulted from deterministic andstochastic methods related to the statistical treatment of runoff triangles which correspondsto the net compensation of reimbursements coilected, with no losts ailocated to themanagement of claims and gross reinsurance.
b) Reserves amounts were obtained according to the foilowing procedures:o without deflating the amounts of compensations atready paid, i.e. without pracing their 2021costs;
o Not considering the discounted value of future payments, nor its growth due to inflation.c) ln small lines of business, provisioning is carried out on a case-by-case basis based on theinformation contained in the claim and expert reports.

d) ln the workers compensation line of business, there is a mathematical reserve that registersthe company's liability for claims occurring up to December 31, 202!, andinvolves pension paymentsalready approved by the Labour court or with a conciliation agreement already done. said reserve also:;t :il:;l::::HHn of liabilities with presumed incapacities resutting from claims that are awaiting
ln accordance with the principle of prudence used by the company, the w gg/go rife table continuedto be used to calculate the Mathematical Reserve, with a technical interest rate of 2.L5% (2.35% in2O2O) and 3% of management charges.
The remission of Pensions for workers compensation is calcutated by the TD gg/g0 life table, with a}Tl:i:T:;i1;:[""J 5'2s%'according to the ordinance No. 1112000, orranuary 13, incrud ingLo/o
The IBNR reserve' pensions only, is calculated according to the number of pensions of the injuredpersons, excluding death pensions, since such claims are known immediately.

Equity Result of the financial year202t 202L
AssetCompany tiability2021 20zo 20.20 202L 2020 2020

u
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e) ln addition' the Lifetime Assistance Reserve is calculated according to the TV gg/90 life tablewith 3% of charges and the technical interest rate of 2.r5o/o (2.3s% in 2o2o),with a growth rate of 2yoadded to average lifetime costs against future inflation.f) Balance sheet claims reserve is increased from the craims reserve management expenses,where deterministic models are apptied to run off triangles of paid amounts with claims managementexpenses' costs allocation by year of occurrence and year of payment is made through the number ofclaims under management in the year.

g) The amount of the total unreported claims reserve (IBNR) was estimated according to thenumber of claims incurred each year and, according thereto, a deterministic model is applied toestimate the total number of expected claims, per year of occurrence and thus obtaining the craimsthat will be reported in referring to years of occurrence arready erapsed.
Based on these numbers of expected IBNR situations and the totar estimated cost of craims per yearof occurrence, the amount of the desirabre rBNR reserve is found.

h ) The case-by-case amount of the claims reserve declared in the financial year has been increasedto cope with any unforeseen shortcomings (IBNER).
The development of the direct insurance claims reserve rerated to craims occurring in financiar yearsprior to 202L and its readjustments in the year ended as at December 3L, 2027 canbe found in theAppendix 2 of this report.
The breakdown of the claims reserve (not inctuding management costs) for the years 2o2L and 2o2ois shown below:

Workers Compensationl
- Mathematical Reserve
- Lifetime Assistance Reserue- Other Benefits Reserue

Other lnsurancei
Personal Accidents and passengets
Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor
Marine, Aviation and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liability
Credit and Guarantee
Other:
- Legal Protection
- Assistance

5 433 491.,27
304 635,56

3 27r 379,OO
9 009 50s,83

79 269,30
0,00

929 743,05
72O430a332

92347,37
17 428,38

475 560,83
0,00

3 826,30
407 155,26

10 938 267,80
20 743,342rr 059,78

11 170 070,93
13 1628s

0,00
1 098 386,21r 037 223,23

877,28
4 299,98

L69 58&25
0,00

111,35
7072,70

16 37r759,07
325 378,91

3 482 438,78
20 L79 576,76

92 437,76
0,00

2 02a 729,26
t3 074306,s4

93 218,65
2772a36

646 749,09
0,00

3 937,66
402 767,96

4198s26,77
279 296,86

2798957,29
7 276714,86

1,70 474,64
0,00

860 578,48
9 702 964,43

30 363,59
25976,36

511 289,88
0,00

3922,30
35A917,64

8 591 082,1s
24657,97

141 665,03
E 757 405,09

6 0s4,62
0,00

238743,38
742 139,49

7 223,37
5 192,37

169 986,95
0,00

229,20
2532,03

U: Euro

12 789 608,86
303 954,77

2 940 6L6,32
16 034 179,95

176 s29,26
0,00

7099 327,87
10 44s 103,92

31 586,95
31 158,57

681276,A2
0,00

4 151,50
361 449,67

2021
Undeclared

2020
Undeclared

LTNES OF BUSINESS/UNES OF BUSTNESS GROUPS Declared DeclaredTotal
Balance Sheet Total

Ealance Sheet

23 052 9X9,63 1894t262,17 9 923 506,44 288647€a.,6t
Total 13 488 731,8{' 35 54r I14 043 2 318 362 ll 12 830
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The assigned reinsurance claims reserve and the respective annuat change in profit and toss accountis analysed as follows:

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor:

Civil Liability
Other Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liability
Other

11 398 728,31
L713739,9a
1 150 932,51

563 126,77
65 253,06
15 209,86

123303,60
0,00

8736548,42
862 435,83

1 087 158,36
994 358,53
22710,86
2t 8t8,07

110 680,75
0,00

2 662 L79,89
851 304,15

63 774,!5
-431 237,83

42 542,20
-6 608,21

72 622,84
0,00

U:Euro

2 547 043,82
720 243,05

280 245,8r
951 198,48

75 346,74
16 996,38
7 270,75

0,00

The costs of direct insurance claims, reported as of December 3L, 202L, aredetailed in Appendix 3.
;ilTffi:net of reinsurance can be analvsed, as shown in the foltowing tabte, as of December 31,

Balance of the balance sheet Gains and losses changesUNES OF BUSINESS/UNES OF BUslNEss
GROUPS 2A2L 2020 2027 2020

15 030 294,02 11 835 710,83 3 194 583,19 3 938 345,03Total
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Direct lnsurance:
Workers Crmpensation
Personal Accidents and passengers
Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor
Marine, Aviation and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liabitity
Credit and Guarantee
Other:
- Legal Protection
- Assistance

Ceded Reinsurance:
Worke6 Compensation
Personal Accidents and passengeE
Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor
Marine, Aviation and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liability
Credit and Guarantee
Other:
- Legal protection
- Assistance

6 347 847,77
747664,46

0,00
2292979,4a

79 46A 759,74
28352,36
40 589,s3

277 48A,97
0,00

12 s6s,80
2 L66 8A7,40

30 770 529,46

-7904 827,8A
-29 384,3s

0,00
-1 683 450,24
-2023 726,78

-79 620,76
-27 759,96
-1 !29,2s

0,00

0,00
0,00

-5 594 699,23

4 272s76,60
-83 288,11

0,00
939 811,70

2 372 863,27
624s6,oa
-6 416,94

47s64,44
0,00

70 620 364,37
58 376,35

0,00
3 232797,7A

u, a47 023,07
90 808,44
34 L72,60

229 924,47
0,00

4 862 477,79
86 72s,37

0,00
2 025 s41,88

75 r33 257,32
33 849,62
1,7 426,76

303 605,78
0,00

10 058,38
7 704 024,25

2417t295,s5
-1 32s 35s,os

-727,6A
0,00

-1,4s2s96,27
-774I738,47

-23 367,72
-7 083,67

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00

-3 950 262,85

3 760 137,a5
79 265,86

0,00
120 9ss,56

2829 499,OA
22065,65
3048,17

247 76A,80
0,00

U:Euro

I622 549,04
16s 391,23

0,00
2747 497,44

77 962750,40
55975,27
41 889,93

550775,57
0,00

12768,80
7 777 8s6,45

31 337 394,13

-3 807 629,24
-64897,32

0,00
-1 539 496,93
-2 373 782,76

-54 24A,6s
-39 319,95
-7 270,75

0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00

-7 986 045,61

7 779,72
39 864,73

7 557 362,6L

-2 59s 181,06
33 001,18

0,00
-734 136,80
367 457,6a
-74940,03
12 928,93

-72 622,84
0,00

13 585,51
2 206 746,73

38t27 A92,O7

-4 600 008,9s
3 516,82

0,00
-2477 587,O4
-1 6s5 659,10

-94 s60,79
-74 237,03
-!9 752,09

0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00

-a 798 t92,17

2 770,42
73432,19

7 166 098,58

-2 482 274,78
-64769,64

0,00
-186 900,56

-7 237 444,30
-30 885,93
-32236,30
-7 270,75

0,00

0,00
0,00

40t5782,76

0,00
0,00

-3 703 492,94

IINES OF BUSTNESS/uNE5 OF BUSTNESS GROUPS paid 2021 2020Reserve Reserueclaims Overall
cost Pald

clalms Overall
cost

Total Lfquido 25 075 830,23 4 45t 869,66 29 529 699,89 20221032,69 3 130 315,82 23 3s1 34&52Cldims c6ts ote stqted net of rcceived/issued rcimbutsemenY ond include chotged claims monogement costs.

5.1.2. Unearned premiums reserve
The breakdown of unearned premiums reserve of direct insurance and ceded reinsurance is as follows:

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor:

Civil tiability
Other Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party tiabitity
Miscellaneous

665 s24,74
2 099 547,00

5 565 514,69
3 662 050,78

33 135,19
L6 489,36

207 917,05
t 277 972,30

777 034,76
397 027,61

843 228,0s
582 340,60

5 075,33
2 792,03

5t 272,09
115 368,14

494 489,38
7 702 579,39

4 722 286,65
3 079 710,78

28 0s9,85
t4 297,34

156 698,96t 702 604,76

U:Euro

425 029,51
1 181 185,32

4 796 384,09
2 770 032,96

24 404,72
16 338,10

757 704,06
1 005 336,11

r.lNE5 OF BUStNESS/uNE5 OF BUstNEsS
GROUPS Deferred

acquisition costs
Balance Sheet Value Balance Sheet ValueCalculated

amount 202t 2020

13 468 144,51 2!67 478,6rDirect lnsurance Total 11 300 665,91 9 776 414,28

30



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

U:Eu ro
Ceded reinsurance:

UNES OF BUSTNE9S/UNE5 OF BUSTNESS
GROUPS

Calculated
amount Deferred Balance Sheet Valueacquisition costs 202L

galance Sheet Value
2020

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor:

Civil Liability
Other Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Parry tiability
Miscellaneous

43 793,62
7657 462,L5

267L,9r
5 036,67

23 059,57
LL422,34

0,00

3 538,33
430 26t,94

0,00
0,00

7 991,11
3 997,21

0,00

40 255,29
7227 200,27

2617,97
5 036,67

15 068,46
7 425,17

0,00
23,68

29 726,88
754 529,76

2 384,64
4 779,36

13 216,80
9 048,48

0,00
Total Ceded Reinsurance L297 621,39 813 085,981743 422,7t 44s801,72

5.1.3. Total Technical Reserves
ln the following tables, the development of technical reserves of direct insurance and ceded
reinsurance of the Company can be verified during the years under review:

[J:E uro
Te.hnl.al Reserves of Ohect lnsurance costs

Defeltedacquisltlon Balancesheet202l Balancesheet2020 variationCalculat€damount
unearned premiums reserye

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor

Civil Liability
Other Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transponed Goods
Third Party Liability
Miscellaneous

665 524,74
2099 547,N

77IO34,76
197 027,51

494 489,38| 702 579,39
425 029,57

1 181 185,32

5 565 51469
3 652 050,78

33 13s,19
16 489,36

207 911,05
7 277 972,30

843 228,05
582 340,60

5 075,33
2 792,03

57 272,09
115 358,14

4 722 246,65
3 079 710,18

28 05q85
74 297,34

156 598,96
1 102 50416

4 196 384,09
2 770032,96

24 404,72
15 338,10

!57 704,06
1 005 33611

Subtotal 73 464 744,51 2767 474,67 11 300 555,91 9776474,2A 1524257,63
Equallration Reserue 145 495,83 724 197,77 17 304,72
claim5 Reserue

Mathematical Reserue
Lifetime Assistance
Other Seruices

Fire and Other Damage
Motori

Civil Liability
Other Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liability
Miscellaneous

76 177 759,07
325 37a,97

3 709 562,02
2 037 618,50

12 789 60&86
303 954,77

3 227 477,06
1 105 702,85

70 557 220,61
2 595 050,80

93 244,79
21 985,18

652 464,54
405 105,62

7 817 463,82
2 699 188,73

31 601,06
37 327,99

684 501,91
355 501,17

Subtotal 0,00 0,00 36771394,02 29050362,22 7727037,aO

Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor:

civil Liability
Othe. Coverage

Marine and Transports
Transported Goods
Third Party Liability
Miscellaneous

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00
0,00q00
q00
0,00

0,00
0,00

0,00q00
0,00
000
000
0,00

Subtotal 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
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U:Euro
Technical Reserves of Ceded Reinsurance 202r 2020

Unearned premiums reserve

Claims reserve:
Reported claims
Unreported claims (ibnr)

L297 62L,39 813 085,89

10 204 093,73
4826200,29

1s 030 294,02

I463 s23,07
3 372 t87,77

118357t0,77

5.2. Nature and Extent of Specific lnsurance Risks
The specific insurance risk corresponds to the risk inherent in the trading of insurance contracts,
associated to product design and their pricing, to the underwriting process, liabilities provisioning, and
claims and reinsurance management.
ln Non-Life insurance, the specific risk of insurance includes, among others, premiums, reserves, and
catastrophic risks.
The underwriting, provisioning, and reinsurance processes are duly documented with respect to the
main activities, risks and controls
In summary, the most important control mechanisms are:

o Delegation of Competencies formally defined for different processes;
o Segregation of functions between the areas that carry out risk analyses and calculate tariffs;
o Limited access to different applications according to their user profile;
o Documentation scanning in issuing processes and claims management;
r Procedures of case-by-case cross-checks.

The level of claims reserve is monitored monthly, with quarterly reviews to all claims processes, being
implemented stochastic assessment models to fill insufficient reserves.
The development of the direct insurance claims reserve, gross reinsurance, and net reimbursements,
excluding mathematical reserves of the Workers Compensation line of business and claims reserve
management costs, can be analysed as follows through the triangles of Caravela at !OO% of claims
costs and payments of the last 10 years:

Total technical reserves of ceded reinsurance 16327 9L5,41 12648796,67
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lnltlal estlmate of ostswlth claims, grcss
relnsurance and net relmbursements,
excluding mathematlel leserues,
manatemeant cost5 reseryes, lENR and
IBNER
Cumulative payments
Ons yearlsterTw y€aF latgrThGE yea6 laterFouryeaF laterFiE yeEE laterSix y€ac laterS€wn yeaE latsrEight yeaF laterNine yoaF laterT€m y€a6 laler
Finalestlmatlon of @sts wlth clalmsOn€ yegr laterTm yeaE laterThEa ysats lalerFoury€aB latgtFiw yeats lalerSix ysats lal€rSBEn yeaE lalerEight ysaF laterNins y6aE laterTsm yeats lat6r

24307 14091 13569 14759 16900 18275 2133A 27887 35428 44296 55902

20 89621 71322 469
23 04323 28723 50123 54723 55523 56223 525

24 22724 027237E923 91823 90723 74923 60723 s92
23 58723 548

10 457
11 218'11691
11 75912 15812 178
12 U412256'
'12 676

13 17913 457
13 375
13 019
12 73012 U7
12 729
12 982
12 986

10 240
11 22711 7691207412 15512 17512 45112 876

13 815
'13 39713 130
13 251
'13 244
13 26'l
13 238
13 303

265

10 59311 59211 88912 043
12 33A12 38412 474

14'167't3 39113 16613 17312 8'1112 79112 904

14 741
15 990
17 089
17 3't9
17 889
18 08,1

17 80i
18 034
17 877
18 048
12 2381428Il

't6 95818 10618 830
19 773
'19 859

't9 61619 92320 44020 50920 511

25 59927 01527 49028 558

30 27031 87532 690
39't'1540 921

27 90828 52228740
29 084

32 s6933 35934 233
41 44042 850

44 699

4A 641

2759 1 105 1 851 -1 365 -2266 4 696 4 346 -7 422 4 377

The Company practices a ceded reinsurance policy based on proportional and non-proportionaltreaties. ln2O2!, the reinsurance structure consists of proportional treaties (Share and Surplus) andnon-proportional treaties (Excess of Loss and Catastrophic Coverage), as follows:

Workers Compensation Excess of loss (XL) and Proporcional
Personal Accidents Excess of loss (XL) and ProporcionalHealth FrontingProperty euota - share
Property (natural catastrophes) Excess of loss (XL)Engeneering Quota - shareMotor Excess of loss (XL) and Proporcional
Marine and Transports Quota - shareCargo euota - shareThird Party Liability Excess of loss (XL)

5.3. Nature and Extent of Market, Credit, Liquidity and Operating Risks
Market Risk
Market risk consists of risk of loss or adverse movements in the value of assets related to changes inthe market prices of financial instruments.
This risk includes exchange rate, stock, real estate, interest, spread and concentration risks.
The lnvestment policy defines the guiding principles for prudent investment management as well asmonitoring and reporting activities.

Line of Business Type of Reinsurance
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ln order to assure an adequate risk management, portfolio exposure limits were set out based on 6
specific criteria:

o Asset class;o Type of issuer (legalform);o Rating level;o Activity sector;o Geographicalarea;
o Concentration by issuer.

Exchange rate risk
Exchange rate risk is caused by the instability of exchange rates against the Euro. Exposure to such riskis residual due to the non-authorisation of investment in foreign currency established in theinvestment policy. lndirectly, through the transparency of investment funds held, there is an
insignificant exposure to foreign currency. The capital requirement is as follows:

(thousands of euros)

+/- 25% shock to foreign currency exposures 20

Capital RequirementScenarios 202r 2020

Stock Risk
Stock risk results from the instability of stock market prices, with equity securities being exposed to such risk,
particularly investments funds totally or partially composed of said titles. The sensitivity analysis is described as
follows:

sands of euros

Type I equity shock 0
1 554

45
767

Scenarios Capital Requirement
202L 2020

shock
Propertv Risk
Property risk results from the instability of real estate price market.ln2O2L, this risk had a relevant
variation, as far as the capital requirement is concerned, since the assets exposed suffered a change,
so the capital requirement is described as follows:

4
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Capital Requirement
202t 2020

ousands of eu

+/- 25% shock in the value of own use property and investments property 1 086 148

lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk arises from changes in the temporal structure or the instability of interest rates.
Assets (Bonds and Fixed-term Deposits) and liability (technical reserves, especially the mathematical
reserve of Workers Compensation) are exposed to interest rate risk.
The capital scenario is described in the following table:

Assets

Downward shock on risk-free interest rate curve

nds of

28-t375 0-r340

Effects on Assets
202t 2020

U rd shock on risk-free interest rate curve

Liabilities

Downward shock on risk-free interest rate curve
Upward shock on risk-free interest rate curve

(milhares de euros)

23L
-L226

t23
-1 038

Spread Risk
The spread risk consists of unexpected losses caused by the depreciation of credit quality or default of
a business partner, reflecting the instability of credit spreads along the risk-free of interest rates curve.
The securities exposed to this risk are mainly corporate bonds and fixed-term deposits.
Assets with direct exposure to spread risk have the following profile:

Scenarios Effects on Liabilities
202t 2020
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Capital
requirement

202t 2020
Rating % DurationExposure Exposure Duration Capitalrequirement

ds of

AAA
AA
A
BBB
BB
B
CCC or lower
Unrated

2%
2t%
36%
4r%

o%
0%
0%
1%

z'rt
t0%
4%

L7%
44%
73%

704
3%

1 096
4779
L764
8748

22240
5 613
3 542
1 485

rr
246
470
440

0
0
0
4

3,8
5,8
3,8
2,4
0,0
0,0
0,0

2,8
5,0
3,4
2,7
0,0
0,0
0,0

z%
2r%
44%
33%

0%
o%
o%
L%

9
228
418
632

0
0
0
4

3%
L0%

5%
78%
35%
7s%
72%

3%

Concentration Risk
Concentration risk refers to additional instability in a very concentrated portfolio. Portfolio
distribution per activity sector can be analysed as follows:

of

Communications
Consumer - Cyclical
Consumer - Non-cyclical
Financial
Funds
Governments
Services
Other

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1 101
4 469
2L29
7 596

74994
6 548
5 298
1 230

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

The group of the 10 largest securities per issuer group is basically composed of public issuers
usands of eu

Divida Piblica Portuguesa
Divida Piblica Espanhola
Divida P0blica Belga
Banco Bankinter
Credit Agricole Sa
Divida P[blica lrlanda
Bp Capital Markets Plc
Agence Frangaise D6veloppement
Schlumberger Finance Bv
Wells & Com

OBG
OBG
OBG
cPz
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG

2036
1 455
1 036

962
712
599
548
526
505
501

3,9Yo
2,8%
2,jYo
r,9%
L,4%
t,20/o
t,L%
L0%
L,0%
t,o%

BBB
A

AA
BBB
A
A
A

AA
A

BBB

1 290 1t1tTotal too% l@o/o3,4 3,7

% Exposure lmpairment % Exposure lmpairmentActivity sector 202t 2029

Total 0 0Lffi% 50267 t0w" 43 365

Asset type Rating Exposurelssuer Group 2021
Weight

8 881
Total Carteira investimentos 51 634

Total t70a{n%
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(thousands of euros)

Divida Priblica Portuguesa
Divida Piblica Espanhola
Divida Pfblica Belga
Banco Bankinter
Simon lntl Finance Sca
Vf Corp.
Divida Piblica lrlanda
Schlumberger Finance Bv
Bp Capital Markets Plc

5,L/o
3,4%
2,4%
2,L%
7,6%
7,SYo
r,4%
1,3%
1,2%

BBB
A
AA
BBB
A
A
A
A
A
AA

OBG
OBG
OBG
cPz
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG
OBG

2288
1 504
L077

95070r
687
626
570
557
546

Liquiditv Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility of the Company not holding assets with enough liquidity to
meet the obligations to policyholders and other creditors as they mature.
For risk mitigation purposes, it should be noted that the Company has a monthly liquidity plan which
is reviewed weekly and analysed daily.
The liquidity plan also aims at the financial investment of surplus capital, particularly in short and
medium-term deposits to the safeguard of advanced mobilisation.
Whenever there are strong outflows, the Financial Management together with lnvestment
Management, foresees liquidity needs.
Credit Risk
Credit risk consists of the risk of loss due to default or deterioration of counterparty credit levels which
is mitigating existing risk, such as reinsurance contracts, receivable amounts by intermediaries, as well
as other credit exposures that have not been considered in the spread risk.
The Company has control procedures to mitigate such risk regarding clients and agents, particularly
the systematic monitoring of the amounts and seniority of receivable receipts.
As far as reinsurers are concerned, they are carefully selected not only due to their economic andfinancial strength, but also to their technical capacity. An analysis is performed periodically to the
development of the reinsurers' ratings.

Asset type Rating Exposurelssuer Group 2020
Weight

9 516
Total Carteira investimentos 44730

Total 2t%
lB09o
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Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of significant losses resulting from inadequacy or failures in processes,
people or systems, or external events.
The following point, which refers to the internal control system, includes the operating risks with
highest granularity.
The operational risk management aims to identify and know the risks that Caravela face and to monitor
them in accordance with the tolerances set.
The methodological approach used follows three stages:
O ldentification and classification of risks
The identification of the risks is carried out through interviews with the officials in charge for the
Caravela's main areas.
ln these interviews the main top-down risks of the area will be identified and categorised according to
ASF guidelines.
ln addition to the risk category and subcategory, the Company defines the risk to which it is exposed,
as well as the causes and consequences.
* Control's assessme nt and its effectiveness
This assessment is very important for the correct identification of inherent and residual risks of each
risk, being crucial to identify mitigation actions/additional controls to be carried out.
ln order to calculate the impact and probability (inherent and residual), it is necessary to resort to a
set of methods such as: data on internal losses; data on external losses; experience and intuition of
risk owners.
+ KRlljdeltification and action plans

KRI is related to a specific risk and is used as an alert for a possible change in probability and impact of
a risk occurring.
After identifying and classifying the main top-down risks of the Company, the risks that will be subject
to stress tests in the scope of the prospective self-assessment process are identified.
Such risks should reflect high impact and medium/low probability risks to ensure the use of budgetvariables to test their impact.

I Key Risklndicator
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lnternal control svstem
The internal control system comprises a set of means, behaviours, procedures and actions adapted to
its own characteristics and is intended to provide a reasonable assurance in achieving the Company's
goals.
The main expected effects of an effective internal control system and operational management risk
are:

ldentify potential events that are likely to affect the achievement of the Company's goals,
ensure treatment in case of risk occurrence and anticipate actions to be taken;
Define a control system proportional to the risks that the organisation is willing to accept to
increase its value;
Allow management to make clear decisions.

Caravela follows the COSO Report2 definition and matrices.The Group understands 'internal control' as a means of:
o Controlling its processes;o lmproving its activities;r Enhancing its competitiveness

lnternal control must be done by all: Anyone active in the organisation must manage their risks and
controls in the field of their activity.
From this perspective, the risks identified for each of Company's activities (Macro processes) are
formalised through a risk mapping.

o Each compilation includes Company's activities in processes and subprocesses;o For each subprocess, risk events are identified;o For each risk event a control objective is associated;o For each control objective, one or more examples of control activities are described in order to
clarify the understanding of the control objective, if necessary.

For each control objective, officers must:

o

a

a

Describe the implemented control to provide a reasonable assurance regarding occurrence(frequency) and severity (cost) of the identified risk event;
And self-assess the effectiveness of the control through a questionnaire.

Self-assessment of the internal control system takes place in different stages
Self-assessment campaign;

a

o

a
2 Committee Of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treatway Commission
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o Description of control activities;. Self-assessment of control activities;o Action plans, if necessary;. lndependent testing;o Test of effectiveness of controls (design and operational);o Recommendation, if necessary.
5.4. lmpairment losses recognised and reversed regarding reinsurance assets
There were no impairment losses this financial year.
5.5. Qualitative information regarding premiums and reserves adequacy
Analysis to claims ratio and portfolio profitability are periodically performed, segmented by several
variables as well as other actuarial studies to assess adequacy of the tariffs applied,
The aggregate ratio (division of all costs in the Technical Account by the total revenue detailed herein)
is calculated for each line of business. Tariff's adequacy or inadequacy is measured to whether this
ratio is lower or higher than 100%, completing the criterion by analysing the Unexpired Risks Reserve
structu re.
Tariff sensitivity analyses are also carried out as well as comparative studies with market practices.
The adequacy analysis of technical reserves is carried out periodically through deterministic and
stochastic methods, in addition to regular audits, namely case-by-case analysis of claim processes.
5.6. Qualitative and quantitative information on claims and expenses ratios, combined
claims and expenses ratios, and operating ratio (resulting from the consideration of income
from investments in different segments), calculated without reduction of ceded reinsurance
The claims reserve at the end of the financial year is 36.77L.394,02 euros, compared to 29.O5O.362,23
euros in2O2O.
The Group overall claims ratio in 2O2L, calculated on the gross premiums written and before cost
allocation, was66,LYo(62,L%in2O2Ol and68,6% after cost allocation (64,8% in 2020):

!10
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Claims ratio {per lines of business} 202t 2020

( 1 ) - lncluding Costs Allocated to Claims

The combined ratio (including reinsurance) shows the following composition as at December 3L,2O2L
and 2020:

Workers Compensation
Personal Accidents
Health
Accidents / Health
Fire / Other Damage
Motor
Other branches

Operating costs and expenses/earned premiums
Claims costs/acquired premiums

I nventories/Salvage
Other Policyholders/Claims Reimbursements
Other Deb. Creditors/Claims Reimbursements

74,7%
tr,2%
o,oYo

7O,0?6
59,9/o
70,3%
62,O/o

0
1,743 623

0

73,9%
47p%
0,0/o

7O,296
5L,6YO
64,2%
66,3%

24,O%
77,5%

26,2%
67p%

5.7. Recoverable amounts in respect of amounts paid for claims arising from the acquisitionof rights of the insured concerning third parties (subrogation) or obtaining legal ownership
of insured goods (salvage)
The amount related to claims reimbursements on the last days of the years 202I and 2020 was asfollows:

U:Euro

0
L 579 954

0

The Company believes that the reimbursement amount is recoverable, and therefore concluded thatthere was no impairment in this financial year and no loss was registered.
6. Financial instruments (does not include investment contracts)
The lnventory of Holdings and Financial lnstruments as at December 3L,2021. is presented in Appendix
1, of which the following summary is presented:

Claims Ratio {1} 68,6Yo 64,gYo

Results analysis 2021 2920

Combined ratio 94,1%95,6%

Type of reimbursment Recoverable
amount in2O2L Recoverable

amount in2O20
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U:Euro
Financial lnstrument Balance Sheet Value

Bonds and other fixed-income securities
from public issuers
from other issuers

Shares
Other variable-income securities

6 196 156,06
21,567 480,29

237 056,L6
22239 986,38

Total 50 240 678,88

lnitial recognition and subsequent measurement
All financial instruments held by the Company are open to negotiation in stock markets or on regulated
markets, and are measured at fair value, except for the Prodis Thema Fund and Lehman securitieswhich are measured by 0.00€ and 10.00€, respectively, as for these assets, impairments were
recognized for default by issuers in 20L0 and 2011.
At the time of purchase, available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at fair value (purchase price)
added to the trading costs.
ln subsequent measurements such assets are also registered at fair value and their corresponding
changes are recognised in equity, within 'revaluation reserves for adjustments of fair value in
availa ble-for-sa le financial assets'.
During the financialyear of 2O2L,the Company recognised a negative change in equity amounting to
-697.IO5,92 euros (in2O2O, the charge was equally positive amounting to +456.239,04 euros) in the
fair value of investment portfolios, which is registered in the revaluation reserve.
Segmentation bv catesories
The Company's investment policy, specified in item 4 is in accordance with the rules and limitations
established by the Supervisory Authority for lnsurance and Pension Funds and the prudential
diversification of investments is taken into consideration, ensuring its suitability to the responsibilities
of CARAVELA in order to improve the risk/profitability interface.
The strategy and criteria for the management of investments is established annually by the
Management and the implementation and performance are monitored monthly, in order to constantly
adjust the investment portfolio to the specified goals.
During 2O2L, the activities undertaken adjusted the portfolio of financial assets to the strengthenedprudential structure, in compliance with the previously outlined goal.
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U:Eu ro
Financial lnsrument Fair Value 2021 Fair Value 2O2O%

Holdings in subsidiaries and partners
Shares, participation units and investment funds
Fixed-income securities
Variable income securities
Derivative instruments
Deposits with credit institutions
Other loans

2 400,00
22 477 042,54
26 790 404,73

973232,22
0,00

1 465 995,36
23 8s6,00

o%
43%
52%
2%
0%
3%
o%

o%
34%
58%
4%
0%
3%
o%

2 400,00
15 231 096,09
26046248,76

1 964 935,88
0,00

7 435 179,36
L20 739,73

Total 5t73293O,24 L0V/5 44800600,81 tAO%

ln accordance with the established rules, the Company's financial assets continued to be mostly
invested in the Euro Zone, as can be seen in the table below:

U:Euro
Securities portfolio Fair Value 2021 Fair Value 2020%

Public debt
Fixed-€te bonds
Floating-rate bonds

747 590,73
875 1540s

0,00

973232,22
77769M,56

0,00

43 130 370,05
4544 489,23
I974 L16,90

43t343,t2
1 036 352,88
2 672 t57,77

27 833 768,74
599 224,70
295 165,55
389 430,84

2 384 595,35
295 742,27
574 589,33

71t6564,84

185 975,93
5 295 238,55

0,00

76873,55
5 128 425,19

0,00

35 783 545,30
3 735 773,45
1823 346,84

448067,52
1076 672,88
2 933 18403

20 652 L77,82
782 200,62
299 351,35

1 013 953,81
2 416 326,71

302 063,87
300 432,40

7 5at a76,L7

3942s49,48
9 381 651,09

0,00

5 355222,91
22391 473,44

0,00

Euto Area
Portugal
Germany
Austria
Belgium
Spain
France
lrland
Italy
Luxembourg
The Netherlands
Noruay
Sweden

Outside Euro Area

a6%
9%
4%
t%
2%
5%

55%
7%
7%
1%
5%
t%
7%

t4%

8r%
9%
4%
1%
2%
7%

4a%
2%
!%
2%
6%
L%
t%

t7%

The following tables indicate the liquidity risk in which the Company may incur for not having accessto all its financial assets at the time of fulfilling the commitments arising from insurance contracts,
during the last 2 years and regarding investments in the bond market:

Total 50266934,91 tOA% 43 ?65 42t,48 rcO%

u:Euro

Public debt
Fixed-cte bonds
Floating-rate bonds

799 723,13
49 051,27

0,00

981 815,57
73LU4,53

0,00

181342,U
6s82652,72

0,00

6 s96 473,33
27 4r4 7t2,3L

0,00

1 536 506,95
6 s26 403,28

0,00

3 697 083,94
7 5247s4,56

0,00
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The following table reveals the credit quality of the bond issuers, in accordance with the ratingsoutlined by external entities at the time of this analysis:
U:Euro

AM
AA+
AA
AA-
A+
A
A-

BBB +
BBB
BB

BB+
BBB -
BB-
cc
ccc

Unlisted

491 662,55
43r343,72

2 784704,38
4 046 450,70
3 153 408,31
2707 296,72
5 424520,OL
3 900 661,67
4277 995,44

0,00
0,00

1 19s s8&64
0,00
0,00
0,00
000
4,80

50479I,0L
44806r,52

L 457 596,28
4289 937,13
1 859 050,25
3894 493,62
5 642 098,62
3 819 030,6s
4 521 956,66

0,00
228783,45

I345 377,65
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
4,80

2%
2%
5%

\s%
7%

L4%
20%
74%
16%

o%
t%
5%
o%
o%
o%
o%
o%

2%
2%
8%

7s%
7r%
10%
20%
14%
75Yo

0%
o%
4%
o%
0/o
OYo
o%
o%

B+

The Company did not carry out any transactions in derivative contracts nor did it use repurchasetransactions or stock lending during the year.
The Company followed the same criteria to recognise impairment of securities, mentioned in note
3.2.L., during this financial year, having been recorded as follows:

For equity instruments the Company considers a continued devaluation when suchdevaluation lasts for over L80 days, or a devaluation of significant value when it surpasses 30%in its corresponding quoted value at the date of the balance shee!
o

For debt instruments the Company recognises impairment when there is significant financialdifficulty of the issuer, increasing the likelihood of a bankruptcy proceeding or a breach ofcontract due to noncompliance with the interest or capital payments.
At the close of the financial year 202L, the segregation by the respective categories in 2021 and 2020
was as follows:

27 763 636,35Total 100%100% 28 011 185,64
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Public debt
Fixed-rate bonds
Floating-rate bonds
Shares
Units of lnvestment Funds

44376,29

335 959,59

0,004,80

-295 474,79

202\
U:Euro

0,00
-M37r,49

0,00
0,00

-40 494,910,00

Acquisition Amount Fair Value Reversal inRevaluation Res.
Accum. lmpairment

(Net of Reversal)Financial Asset

380 34199 -295 474,79 -84 866,40Total 4,40

Public debt
Fixed-rate bonds
Floating-rate bonds
Sha res
Units of lnvestment Funds

0,004,80

2020
U:Euro

0
-4437I,49

0,00
0,00

-67 873,41

44376,29

335 959,69 0,00 -264096,29

The financial assets available for sale had the composition described on the following page at the endof each of the years in comparison:

202L
U:Euro

Acquisition Amount Fair Value Reversal in
Revaluation Res.

Accum. lmpairment
(Net of Reversal)Financial Asset

380:t45,99 -264096,29 -tLz244,90Total 4,80

lnt€rest
recelvable

Amount betoreimpaltment Ac.umulatedimpairment Curency
ditferenceE

Balance sheet
amount rFair valueFlnanelal Asset Purchase cost Nel amo!nt

Debt instluments
Of public debtOfnational issuetrOfforeign issue.s

Spain
France
Germany
Belgium
I reland
Austria

I O92 577,A7q00
144 150,39

1 015 315,02
583 220,56
432 753,1A

6 129 3A0,00
3 432,33
4 544,84
6 O32,O4

207,72

7 098 707,25
0,00

747 s82,72
1 020 859,89

549 252,59
432 360,31

7094707,25
0,00

L47 542,72
1 020 859,89

5A9 252,59
432 3@,3L

16 868,74
0,00
8,01

15 492,9A
9 972,08-t077,18

1 115 575,99
0,00t47 590,73

1 035 352,88
599 224,6a
431 343,72

204479s,s9 2 303,52 2047 099,LO 2 047 099,10 -10 963,59 2 035 13s,52

0,(x,

Ofother public issue6
Of national issueE
Of foreign issue6 0,00

818 355,28
0,00

7 396,99
0,00

425 752,27
0,00

a2s 7s2,27 0,00
4 180,88

0,00
829 933,15

Of othea issuec
Of national issue6
Of foreign issuers

47 979,04
27 334 074,59
27 51362t,55

746,96
97 709,94

128 503,18
4a 726,O4

2L 43L7U,57
27 @2724,73

-44 37L,4944 37t,49
44726,O42t347 413,072' 591 753,24

49 980,552r s77 499,74
21 763636,15

1254,52
130 086,65
165 tE3,ttEqulty instrumentsOfnational i5sue6Offoreign issue6 7762,O4

235 294,OA23t 055,16
7 762,O8

235 294,0423r 056,15
7762,04

235 294,OA
237 056,16

7762,04
235 294,OA
237 056,15

0,00
0,00
0,(xt

0,(x,

0,00
0,00

0,(xt

0,00
0,(Xt

Othe. insiruments
UnitsOf residents

Of non-residents
2 421 477,70

19 935 283,45
22 356 70115

0,00
0,00
0,(xt

2 421 477,70
19 935 283,45
22 355 t01,15 -40 494,91{0 494,91

2 42L 477,7O
19 894 788,55
22 3t6 206,24

-44 542,79
-37 677,0a
-16 2t9,47

2376874,91
79 A$ L17,47
22 239 986,3E
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2020
U: Eurc

Flnancial Asset Puaahase aost Net amounlldterelt
recetuable

Amountbefore Acauftllatedlnpalrment impalrment
Fah vrlue

aeserue
Balance 5heetamount'Curr€ncy

dlfferences
Oebt instrumentg
Of public debt

Of national issuers
Of foreign issuers

Spain
FEnce
Gehany
Belgium
lreland
Austaia

Of other public issuers
Of national issuers
Offorcign issueE

Equlty instrument!
Of national issue6
Offoreign issue6

2257225,76 rt657,93 2268883,09 2 268 883,09 18 979,00 2247 462,09

1 690 052,53
242 r37,21
747 374,47

1 023 815,34
590 452,69
432 173,77

7t 993,71t 532,7L
3 432,79
4 544,aa
6 032,04

2O7,L2

7702046,24
243 669,92
150 811,66

7 02A 360,22
596 444,72
432 380,90

L 702 046,24
243 669,92
150 811,66

I O2a 360,22
596 4U,72
432 380,90

51 013,55
8 537,99
1 387,53

483L2,66
29 925,23
15 680,63

1 753 059,79
252 207,97
152 199,19

7 076 672,44
626 409,96
444067,52

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00
0,(n

0,00
0,00

0,00
0,00

Ofotherissu€^
Of national issue6
Offoreign issuers

47 963,64
20 673 756,0l
27 t@955,21

746,96
172 553,43
152 701,55

487tO,64
20 786 309,44
27 25r 656,43

-44 377,49
44 ar!,49

48 710,64
20 747937,95
27 2!tUS,34

50 805,15
21 363 906,15
2E 011 1E5,64

2095,52
621968,20
797 9q',t0

L 7L4,OA
235 294,08
2t7 fia,7a

t774,Oa
23s 294,08
237 m8,15

t7L4,Oa
235 294,04
23t 008,16

0,00
0,00

1 7t4,O8
235 294,04
2?7 0@,160,00

0,00

0,00

0,00
0,m

Othcr instruments
LJnits

of residents
Of non-residents

1720707,94
73 952 344,57
15073 092,51

0,00
0,00
0,00

1720707,94
73 952384,57
15 073 (xt2,51

-67 473,47
-67 arr4l

I L20 707,94
73 aa4 577,t7
15 0O5 219,10

-4 514,30
-66t6,47

.11 1t1,18
1 115 193,63

13477 494,29
14 994 0E7,93

?otal 42415055,94 752701,s6 4256775r,50 -7122M,W 424s5512,6O 0,00 74676912 432422a7,73

7. Cash and cash equivalents and demand deposit
Cash and demand deposits amounts registered in the balance sheet are in euro currency and are
meant for short-term treasury payments.
All cash balance and its equivalents, as well as demand deposits in credit institutions, are available for
use of the Group.
As at December 31, 202Land 2020, the balance sheet heading presents the following composition

384
96

288
2 496 688

U: Euro

0
0
0

130 835

U: Euro
0
0
0

104 635

Cash and cash equivalents
Headq uarters
Dependencies

Demand de

Cash and cash equivalents
Headquarters
Dependencies

Demand deposits

384
96

288
3 017 939

384
96

288
2887 704

2021

3 018 323TOTAI. 2847 4Aa 130 835

2020 Caravela TPIF Douro

2 601 707TOTAT 2 497 072 104 535

384
96

288
2 607 323
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The reconciliation of the amounts calculated in the Company Cash Flow Statement with the equivalent
items reported in the Balance Sheet presents the following structure:

U:Euro
2021 2020

Cash
Bank deposits available on demand
Other bank deposits available on demand

384,00
3 017 939,01
L367 455,09

384,002607322,84
1 365 039,89

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - Cash Flow Statement 4 385 778,10 t966746,74
8. Land and Buildings
As described in note 3.3.L, the Company owns the following income property, valued at fair value, in
accordance with IAS 40:

2027
U: Euro

Acquisition
Value Acquisition Year Sale Year Sale Amount Net Balance

AmountReal Estate
of lncome

Campo Vinha Braga 591 303,51
Armaz6ns Tejo (inclui despesas 3 752 448,88

20L6
202t

s91 303,s1
3 752 448,8A

ln this financial year, the Company proceeded with the valuation of the Campo da Vinha property, in
Braga, and the book value did not change.
9. Other fixed tangible assets (except lands and buildings)
Tangible assets are valued at their historical purchase cost deducted from accumulated depreciations.
Repair and maintenance costs are not capitalised, and are directly recognised in results, when
incurred.
Depreciations were calculated through the straight-line method based on annual rates accepted for
tax purposes and which reflect the estimated useful life of the assets.
The movements registered in 2O2L and 2020 were the following:

4 343752,40 591 303,s1Total o
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2027
U:Euro

Openind BalanreGrorsAmunt Depreelations
lncreasestur.h€s n€valuetidns

clorle &lance
{net affiunt)HEADING Dlrposls Oepr€cladoni oftie tlnandal Y€.r

settl€mens
Tanglble A$et

Administration equipment
Machines and tools!Tequipment
I ndoor facil ities
Transportation equipment
Hospital equipmentOther equipment
operational lease

119 101,58
L73 OtO,72
291 861,48

7 434,67
162 643,22

0,00
5L 122,22

1 045 109,14

119 101,68
107 5i$,14
184 9l{) 81

839,60
72 523,43

0,00
21 2TI,76

228 763,A4

0,00
3 885,11

13 240,03
0,00
0,00
0,00

8 380,84
51 924,22

0,004 445,07
39 474,22

79AF7
34 352,05

0,00
7 259,52

226 446,53

0,00
4 870,62

80 685,i18
396,70

55 aO7,'13
0,00

24955,79
641 826,88

0,00q00q00
0,00
0,00
0,00

365,57
0,00

0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00000

0,00
0,00
0,00000
0,00
0,00

365,57
0,00

0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00000
900
0,00

2020
U:Euro

OpenlnB BalatrceGrossAmoud Depr€cldlons
lncreasesfur(hases Reveludios

DepreciatioN of the nmft lal YearUplift SeBlemenb
ClosingBal.fte
{EtamounrlHIADIN6 Olspsals

Tanalble A5s€tr
Administration equipment
Machines and tools
lT equipment
lndoor facilities
Iransportation equipment
Hospital equipment
Other equipment
Operational lease

t17 022,69
109 676,65
207 A39,20

7 434,67
123 419,22

0,00
45 340,85

955 322,61

117 022,69
704 293,92
162 999,80

641,22
47 7'11,74

0,002t 558,79
0,00

2 lo3,4z
3 334,07

729 7A1,A7
0,00

58 46400
0,00

5 74L36
91 35257

2 to3,42
3 246,21

55 815,33
19437

34 352,13
0,00

5 718,95
224 763,44

0,00
5 470 58

106 920,67
595,08

90 159,79
0,00

23 A44,47
816 345,29

q00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00
0,00q00

24,43
0,00

45 16560
0,00
000
0,00
0,00

r 57t,04

q00
0,00q00
000

19 200,00
0,00
0,00
0,00

24,43
0,00

33 474,32q00
9 599,84

0,00
0,00
0,00

10. Allocation of investments and other assets
The Company has allocated its investments and other assets solely to insurance contracts in the years
2O2L and 2O2O as fol lows:

202r
U:Euro

Cash and equivalents
Land and buildings
lnvest. in subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint ventures
Financial assets held-for-trading
Financial assets classified in initial recognition at fair value through profit
and loss
Hedging derivatives
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and accounts receivable
Held-to-maturity investments
Other tangible assets
Other intangible assets

3 018 323,01
4 343 752,40

2 400,00

50 240 678,88
1 391 311,09

808 s44,20
1 650 485,08

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS Total

6t 455 494,66TOTAL
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Cash and equivalents
Land and buildings
lnvest. in subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint ventures
Financial assets held-for-trading
Financial assets classified in initial recognition at fairvalue through profit
and loss
Hedging derivatives
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and accounts receivable
Held-to-maturity investments
Other tangible assets
Other intangible assets

2020
U:Euro

2 60t 706,84
591 303,51

43 242 28L,73
7 4€.5779,62

1 043 335,88
7098502,70

LL. lntangible Assets
This heading comprises software investment, which is amortised over 3 years through the straight-line
method, as well as 10-year concession rights of the national trademarks 'Netagentes', 'Protegemos o
Seu Futuro','Caravela Seguros', and'Caravela', in the total amountof 4,4L4 euros, included in the
heading of other intangible assets.
For software purchases occurring since the financial year of 20L5, the use of the amortisation methodfor a maximum period of useful life of 6 years was established.
These assets are valued at net purchase cost of the accumulated amortisations and within the limits
of current rates, wherefore the costs incurred with the subsequent maintenance of the software are
recognised in results and are therefore not capitalised.
The movements registered in 2O2Land 2020 were the following

2021
U:Euro

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS Total

s0 062 910,29TOTAL

OFnlnB oalaD.eGro$molnr Amodrarlorr
D€prdallo6 olrk flnftld Yeat
uplfr Se$eoenlrHSDIN6

ldnglbleats
o€velopmentexpeniet
ExFnses with lT applications
lntan8lble atr€tt under.onsnudion

450 122,32
1 188958,72

327 s5t01
2 114,79

1s0039,33
7B 064,29

0,00
114,52

0,m
439 2m,g
901219,02

0,@

0,m
0,m

455 267,77
0,m

150 026,m
182 955,25

o,m
187,66

1s005q99
726 115,22
773 sO6,26

746,61

0,@qm
0,m
o,m

0,m
0,m
0,m
0,m

0.m
0,m
o,m
0,00

2020
U:Euro

OFnlqtalilce
Grosramou.t hodlalio.t Rectuarlo6NEAU{G5 Uplilt

lnbnllbleAss
0,m
0,mqm
q@

0,m
0,m
0,m
0,m

3m 082,99
469 890,4
327 55s,01

974,27

qpe.ss with IT applications
lnt.ngible a$eli under @nfi uctlon

0,m
682 074,03
968834,34

2 114,79

0,@
@5 749,41

0,m
955,86

4so 122,32
506 8e,59
322 313,67

0,m

0,m
0,m

963 593,m
0,m

0,m 150039,330,m lu 318,880,m q@0,m 187,66
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The heading 'intangible assets under construction', amounting to 773.506,26 euros, refers topayments made to date, in connection with the development of new computer applications, namely:
Payment Management Project, which is scheduled for completion in 2O22, amounting to
L4.OBL,28 euros;
Electronic lnvoicing of Public Bodies to the value of 6.482,40 euros;
IFRS 17 lmplementation Project, amounting to 724.L52,48 euros, scheduled to start
development in 2020 and to be completed in 2023.

The development projects in the scope of Collection Automation, Product Evolution, Development of
the Production Environment, Application Support, Analytics, Portal, among others, once implemented
in this financial year, ceased to be part of the intangible assets in progress, having been transferred to
the Company's assets, included in the headings tangible fixed assets and intangible assets, for the total
amount of 455.268,00 euros.

L2. Other reserves and adjustments to asset accounts
Breakdown of adjustment accounts and other reserves by the corresponding sub-accounts

a

a
a

Adiustments for Receiots to be Colleded
Other Policyholde6

-Worke6 Compensation
- Pe6onal Accidents and Passenge6
- Fire and Other Damage
- Motor
- Marine and Transports
-Transported Goods
-Third Party Liability
- Le8al Protection
- Assistanc€

Subtotal
Adiustments of Doubtful Debts

Agents and Brokers
Other Debto6

7lo 444,47
18 035,80
16 583,50

161 598,89
1 150,28
s 370,06
4o79,67

780,45
19 630,98

299 611,90
29 244,57
54 774,46

623 796,27I 397,ss
5 585,64

13 337,88
3 281,98

a2 697,97

190 469,33
14 815,56
34 261,20

to4 273,29
8 031,39
8 991,80

19 210,61
505,78

72 695,34

U:Eurc

279 5A7,OZ
32 50&82
37 207,2s

687L27,47
7s26,44
1 963,91
2206,94
3 ss5,6s

89 633,61
34t744,20 1t20776,61 393 25430 I 069 305,52

51 835,62
19 859,21

7 454,43
0,00

44341,79
19 859,21

0,00
0,00

Subtotal 71 695,8:t 0,flt
1120776,61

7 454,83 6424t,01
Total 413 480,9 /uto 709,13 1tt3547,52

13. lnsurance contract premiums
The structure of premiums recognised in the financial year resulting from insurance contracts, and
other values, is shown in Annex 4.
Earned premiums net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

balance lncrease Decrease closing balance

4



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

U:Euro
Variation2021 2020 2O2Ll2O2O

Gross written premiums
Ceded reinsurance premiums
Change in the gross unearned premiums reserve
Change in the reinsurance unearned premiums reserve

55 862 5r2,LI
-13 648 620,48

-1 415 508,14
557 788,84

48345070,23
-tL7287ALJ7

-2322857,3s
L26242,28

75,5%

€arned premiums net of reinsurance 4t356t72,t3 t441967t,99 20,2%

L4. lnvestment income/revenue
lncome from shares is accounted for in the heading 'lnvestment income' upon the receipt of granted
dividends.
lnterest from bonds and other fixed-income securities are also recognised in the headings regarding'investment income', being accrued at the end of the financial year based on the nominal value andthe interest rate applicable to the corresponding period (accrued interest).
lncome recognised during the year and the previous year, by investment category, were the following:

U:Euro

Holdings in subsidiaries and associated companies 0,00 0% 0,00 0%
Financia I assets available-for-sale:

Shares and other variable-income securities
Fixed-income securities (bonds)

Land and buildings (of income)
Loans granted
Fixed-term deposits in credit institutions
Demand deposits in credit institutions

15. lnvestment profit and loss
The result from profit and loss recognised in the financial year and the previous financial year were
the following:

202L
U:Euro

138 165,38
772132,22
230234,87

2860,27
222,13

0,00

25%
32%
42Yo
L%
o%
OYa

2L37,46 1%
185 249,80 80%

36 576,00 L6%
6 000,0s olo817,33 oYo0,00 lYo

lnvestm€nt Category lncome in 2021 % lncome in 2020 o/o

Total income 543614,82 tOOYo 2?0780,64 tow/o

lnvestment Category Net TotallnvestmentGains lnvestmentLosses
Shares and other variable-income securities
Fixed-income securities (bondsl

23 425,92
233 018,91

-29 5s3,40
-L7L4,5t

-6 L27,48
23r304,40

256 444,83 -tt267,92 225 t76,92Total
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2020
U:Euro

lnvestment Category lnvestment Gains lnvestment Losses NetTotal
Shares and other variable-income securities
Fixed-income securities (bonds)

0,00
r28767,O9

-45 L57,26
-1 964,08

-45t57,26
126 803,01

128767,O9 -47 X2l,?4 81645,75Total

L6. Profit and loss from fair value adjustments in investments
During the financial year, the Company recognised a reversal of impairment in the amount of
27.378,50 euros, as a result of the payment made by Prodis Thema Fund.

L7. Profit and loss in exchange differences
There was no significant profit/loss in 2O2L since the Company's financial investments are entirely
expressed in'euro' currency.
18. Miscellaneous expenses by function and nature
ln 2O2Land2O2O, the Company sustained the following operating costs and expenses for the purchase
of insu rance contracts:

u:Euro

Acquisition costs

Administration expenses

Change in deferGd acquisition costs

1 191 559,15

154440,42
275028,t4

L2,9W6

9sl%
-765,4O%

5 187 331,79

690 49t,67
708743,49

s 290 470,56

515 958,80
-766 244,65

42M470,A6
709\992,52

3949 772,95

7 01L 674,97

10 431 802,65
774248r'.,r9

1O4743,49

9 240 243,50

7627 643,77

-L66 244,65
6986566,96 5740154,71 5336463,38 4 r447,9r !232tO3O,?4 tO7O7@2,62 t62142t,77 15,15%Total

Expenses are initially registered by nature and are later allocated to the claims, acquisition,
administrative, and investment functions, in accordance with the chart of accounts and the allocation
criteria in force at the Company, specifically according to the number of claims, the amount of gross
premiums concerning the new production registered in the year, the gross written premiums net of
cancellations and returned premiums, and to the costs with investments associated with technical
reserves, as well as the people associated with each function.
Costs and expenses by nature allocated to the different functions during the financial years 2O2L and
2020 were the following:
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2021u:Euro
Costs and exp€nses bv nature to be allocat€d Allo€ated to.laims

costs
Allocated toacquisitlon cogts

Allocated to Allocated toadmlnlstratlonexpenses lnvestmentexpenses Total allocaied
P€rsonnel €xpenses

External seryices and supplies

Taxes and fees

Depreciations and amortisations ofthe flnancial year
Other reseryes

lnterest charges
Commissions

3 230 998,55

2359222,60
508 335,81

651 251,55

0,00

72 423,65

747 665,36

552 50q75
576 794,47

232 M5s0
777364,07

0,00

2 724,45

I428,17

7s 847,99

17 785,55

2662,39
5 2rO,O2

0,00

99,38

94772,14

2 709 U2,O6

7 451 745,96

277 114,74

425 267,27

0,00

4772,64
3218/.,15

s42 4O7,76

373 496,6A

55 910,34

109 410,25

0,00

2047,77
8 280,30

3 230 998,56

2359 222,60

s08 335,81

551 251,55

0,00
72 421,65

147 665,36
4244470,6 1991992,52 t'o 377,4 5 909 898,54Total 6 909 898,54 | 423057,6A

2020
U:Euto

Costs and expenset by nature to be allocated Allo.ated to claims
cqsts

Allocated to
acqulsidon costs

Allocated to Allocated toadmlnlstratjon expenses inv€shentexpenses Total allocated
Personnel expenses
External seryices and supplies
Taxes and fees
Depreciations and amortisations of the financial year
Other reserues
lnterest charges
Commissions

3 211 850,30
2003 762,s2
465 104,84
593 744,14

0,00
14 045,19

724 842,76

552 438,25
410 149,88
236 388,69
702723,99

0,00
2 415,77
6 352,74

536 379,00
321 295,03
46 317,64
99 755,27

0,00
2 345,54
6 767,49

28 906,65
17 315,35
2 496,92
5143,70

q00
726,41

84244,07

3 211 850,30
2 003 762,52
466 IO4,U
59374/,74

0,00
14 045,19

724 842,76

2094 726,39
7 254 407,26
180 887,s9
347 72t,78

0,00
9 757,46
24079,06

The change between 2O2t and 2020 within the heading 'External services and supplies' is as follows:
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Heading 2021
U:Euro

El€ctricity
Fuel
Water
Printed matter
office supplies
Technical books and documents
Gift items
Maintenance and repair
Rents and leasing
Representation expenses
Communication
Travel and accommodation
lnsurances
lndependent work expenses
Publicity and advertising
Cleaning, hygiene and safety
Litigation and Notary
specialised work
Contributions (of the activity)
Workplace meals
Premium collection expenses
Other seruices and supplies

17372,74
42627,02
! 276,74

77922,Ot
7 944,41
1 948,10

323L4,A7
53 963,16
65 747,74
21 499,43

399 694,80
45 030,30
39 385,20

ror763,74
244 737,23

75 564,67
382,70

IO14 412,40
46 5L2,76

L 449,77
144 313,s3
s5 926,43

o,5%
L,8%
o,t%
0,5%
0,3%
o,L%
L,4%
2,3%
2,8%
0,9%

16p%
7p%
L,7%
43%

to3%
0,7%
0,o%

43,O%
2,O%
o,L%
6,t%
2,4%

70 977,r5
36354,47

1 584,88
22664,96
10 733,86

447,34
37 060,66
36 283,02
51 658,58
24 583,04

323 299,09
44049,O2
35 537,25
90 72!,2r

221 333,00
7A 562,77

7 697,30
827344,97
40 r02,o7

1 567,00
7r7 523,26

55 273,58

0s%
7,8%
0,1%
1,L%
o,5%
o,o%
L,9%
t,8%
2,6%
t,z%

t6,tTo
2,2%
L,8%
4,5%

LL,O%
0,9%
0J%

47,0%
2,O%
o,t%
5,9%
2,8%

3,6%
17,2%
-r95%
-47,4%
-26,0%
L29,9%
-L2,8%
48,7%
27,3%

-12,5%
23,6%

2,2%
to,8%
L2,9%
LO,3%

-L6,2%
-775%
23,5%
16,o%
-5,0%

22,8%
r,2%re

Some service supply headings registered a more significant change, namely:
The increase of 48.7% in maintenance and repair expenses, being the amount of 9.682,56 euros inbuilding maintenance,4.987,2O euros in vehicle repair, and 3.0L0,08 euros in administrative
equipment.
ln communication, the variation of 23.6% is essentially due to the increase in internet and data services
and courier services.
The 10.3% increase in advertising costs is the result of increased publicity and communication in the
press, and in merchandising, to promote Caravela.
The ongoing lT and digital platform development projects justify the 23.5% increase in specialisedwork in the financial year.

2020 % 202tl 2020

Total 2359222,60 LOO% 2W3L62,52 lwo
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19. Personnel expenses
Average number of emplovees bv professional categories
According to the Company Agreement (CA), the average number of employees, by professional
category, working for the Company during 202twas 128-compared to L27 in 2020-the absolute
number being 133 on December 31, 2O2t,four more employees than in2O2O, which were l-29.

COMPANY AGREEMENT COMPANY AGREEMENT
Director
Technical Manager
Sales Manager
Operational Manager
Technician
Operational Coordinator
Operational Specialist
General Assistant

L
14
4
2
74
23
72
1

1
13
4
2
t4
22
59I

Di.ector
Technical Manager
Sales Manager
Operational Manager
Technician
Operational Coordinator
Operational Specialist
General Assistant

Operational Assistant 2 Operational Assistant 2

Personnel expenses resardins the financial vear
Personnel costs amounted to 3.230.998,56 euros in the financialyear, which represent an increase of
0.5% when compared to the 3.211.850,30 euros in 2O2O and which account for 9.477,59 euros
registered in the financial year corresponding to the payment of the service award, as prescribed in
note 3.6.
It is worth highlighting the additional contribution in the financial year carried out for the lndividual
Retirement Plan (P.l.R.) in the amount of 36.593,54 euros, which had been of 3O.329,LL euros in2O2O,
in accordance with the following note.
These expenses were as follows at December 3I,2O2L and 2020:

U:Euro

ANNUAL AVERAGE ANNUAT TOTAT

Accounts 2021 2020Headings 2O2L12020

6800
6801
6802
6803
6804
6806
6807
5808

Personnel Expenses
Remuneration of Governing Bodies
Personal remuneration
Charges on remunerations
Post-employment beneflts
Other long-term benefits to employees
Compulsory insurances
Social welfare expenses
Other personnel expenses

324 434,88
2 136 799,13

578 600,52
36 593,s4

9 477,59
74 632,33
42703,95
27 756,62

423 557,79
2048486,62

556 345,38
30 329,11

82L6,26
720L6,70
38 050,74
34 847,7r

-23,40%
4,37%
4,OO%

20,65%
15,35%
3,63%

L2,23%
-20,35%

3 230 998,56 3 211 850,30TOTAL 0,60%
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To complement the Policy concerning the Remuneration of Governing Bodies and Supervisory Board,there were no further retirement pension obligations to former members of the mentioned bodies,
apart from a former manager who is covered by the 'Zurich Life Open Pension Plan for Companies /Defined Benefit Pension Plan' mentioned in the following note.20. Obligations concerning employee benefits
Defined Pension Plan
Plan associated with the funding quota of responsibilities falling within the scope of the 2008 Collective
Labour Contract, which is independent from the public Social Security system, covering employeesfrom labour unions admitted in the activity until June 22, L995, and that have not joined other
proposed solutions.
Pensions to be granted are determined in accordance with the provisions of the 2008 Collective Labour
Contract, wherefore this benefit is granted to employees who retire within the insurance activity.
This plan now covers only one participant (a former director, who retired on the grounds of old age),
as shown in the following table:

Number of beneficiaries
Average Age
Average Ann ual Benefit/Pension (€)

Mortallty Table
Technical Rate
Charge

t
76

3.763

Defined Contribution Pension Plan (lRP)
Plan associated with the funding quota of the lndividual Retirement Plan (PlR) beginning on JanuaryL,2012.
The contributions to this plan are the percentages given in Annex V of the Company Agreement,
applied on the basis of the annual base salary of the employee, and the contribution in the year 2O2L
was 35.593,76 euros.
The amount of the contributions is ensured at the benefit settlement date.
The Company's liabilities are recognized as a cost of the financial year when due.

GRF95
L,O%
o,5%

RETIRED POPULATION

ASSUMPTIONS
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WORKING POPUI.ATION
Number of participants
Average Age
Average Annual Wage (€)
Average Seniority (years)

Liabities value as at3I.I2.2O2O
Total value of contributions (lndividual Retirement Plan)
Fund value as at 31.12.2019
Funding ratio

97
46,5

19 943
t7,4

U:Euro

r73 483
I73 483
194 011
I17,83%

2L. lncome tax
The Company is subject to all taxes applicable to Luxembourg Commercial Companies. According tothe tax law published on 18 December 2OL5, a minimum net wealth tax is due for all corporate entitieswith a statutory seat in Luxembourg, based on total gross assets as shown on the balance sheet and
ranging from 535 euros to 32.100 euros. For the year ended 31 December }OZL, the expense chargedfor net wealth tax amounts to the minimum of 7.534,00 euros.
The taxes described below apply to Caravela.
Current tax
The Corporate lncome Tax is determined based on reverse charge statements of the Company,prepared in accordance with the tax regulations in force, being subject to inspection and potential
adjustment by the Tax Authority during the period of five years.
During 2021 financial year, the Tax Authority carried out an inspection of the accounts of the financial
year 2OL9 which did not result in any tax acts or tax matters unfavourable to the Company.
During the current financial year, Caravela incurred in R&D expenses amounting to 2,500,000 euros,which, in its understanding, are eligible under SIFIDE ll (System of Tax lncentives for Business R&D),provided for in the applicable legislation.
As the Company understands that approval of the corresponding tax credit in the amount of L,150,000
euros, which represents 46% of the amount invested in R&D, is highly likely, it will formalise the
submission of an application to the incentives system during 2022 and deduct the tax benefit in the
lncome Statement Form 22 of the Corporate lncome Tax to be submitted to the Tax Authority in 2022.
Given that the Application to the Tax lncentives System for Research and Business Development forthe year 2020, which was submitted by Caravela in July 2O2L, was fully accepted by the National
lnnovation Agency (ANl), the Company can benefit from a tax credit of L,L!2,500, corresponding to
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74.2% of the investment amount of 1,500,000 euros in 2O2O, being that, part of the tax benefit in theamount of 747,656 euros was already deducted in the lncome Statement Model 22 of the Corporate
lncome Tax for 2020, submitted to the Tax Authority in May 2O2L.

Deferred tax
Deferred taxes were calculated based on the temporary differences between some asset and liability
values and the corresponding tax base.
ln this financial year the amount of 8O3,226 euros of deferred tax assets relating to the tax loss for the
year 2OL4 was recognised under Results Brought Forward, as it had already been deducted in previous
years in the lncome Statements Form 22 of the Corporate lncome Tax.
The current and deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised as of December 3L,2O2I, and 2020 are
presented below:

U:Euro

Current tax assets
lncome tax (dellveries on account)
lncome tax (withholdings by thlrd-parties)
Value Added Tax (ln favour of the Company)
Stamp duty (processed)
Withholdlng Tax
Rate for the Portuguese National Authority for Civil Protectlon (processedl
Rate for the WorkeR Compensation Fund (processed)
Rate for the Motor Guarantee Fund (processed)
Social Securlty contributions (in favour of the Company)

Currentt'x llabillties
lncome tax payable
Withholding tax
Value Added Tax
Stamp duty
Rate lor the Portuguese National Authorityior Civil Protection
Rate for the Portuguese National lnstitute for N4edical Emergencl
Rate forth€ Worke6 Compensation Fund
Rate for the lnsursnce lnstitute of Portugal
Rate forthe MotorGuarantee Fund
Grcen cards
Social Security contributions
Governmental agencl payments

Defetred tax aisets
From tempoGry ditferences

Available-for-sale ass€ts
From tax losses

Deferred tax llabillties
From temporary differ€nces

Available-tor-sale assets

229 775,30
60 559,42

0,00
47 4L6,O4

63,U
0,00

3L637,4I
0,00t6u1,73t86293,il

20 t57,98
0,00

20 t57,94

20174,22
20 174,2:2

-il323,76
-58 941,84
-14&9,79

-5s9 802,24
-35 336,59

-157 035,48
-697 851,82
-65 481,04

-150 351,08
-15 278,75
-6L932,U
-rL204,82

-1 896 210,06

r10797,97
7 498,25

0,00
7,58

48,97
0,00

L6994,02
0,00

13 510,53
149257,42

-64733,t6
-56 050,94

-4 800,65
-445872,32

-298L2,22
-t246LO,55
-560 360,05

-50 751,88
-726770,39

-L40/.5,76
-61 030,2s

-946,84
-1 549 805,11

25 255,10
385 54930
410 E03,40

-!77 020,L7-fl7Om,17

2021 2020

Total -r469544,22 -1166764,46

58



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l

Pursuant to article 21of Decree-law no. 44L/L99t and of Decree-law no.53411980, the Company is
up to date with their Social Security and Tax Authority payments.
22. Capital
The share capital of the Company is set at an amount of 212.000 euros and is represented by thefollowing:

U: Euro

Subscribed and fully paid up 2L2000 2I2000

ln addition, we have an amount of 11.461.050 euros in issue premiums and of 2O.L98.739,00 euros
referring to supplementary installments.
Regarding the amount of 20.L98.739,00 euros of the supplementary installments, it refers to a portion
of the capital injected by Coinvest (LOO% shareholder of the Company) into the Company, an interestfree loan ("lFL"). Hereupon, based on features of the lFL, this has been treated in the consolidation
financial statements as an equity instrument. More specifically, these features are full loss absorption,
non callability, lack of interest as well as the fact that the instrument is and has always been solelybetween Douro Bidco and the 100% owner of the Company. As a consequence, this instrument is
viewed by both the Company and Coinvest as an equity instrument.
During the period ended 31 December 2Q20, the following shares were issued with a par value of €1
each. These all remained in issue during the year ended 3L December 2O2L:

202! 2020

Total 212000 2L2000
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U: Euro

Ordinary Shares
Class A Shares
Class B Shares
Class C Shares
Class D Shares
Class E Shares
Class F Shares
Class G Shares
Class H Shares
Class I Shares
Class J Shares

L2 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000

12 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000
20 000

The composition of Group's equity at the end of the financial years of 2O2L and 2020 can be analysed
in the following table:

U: Euro
Capital 212 000,00 212 000,00
Other capital instruments 20 198 739,00 20 151 214,00
Consolidation reserves -7 4520L3,t9 -3 LOL202,92
Other reserves 11 461 050,00 3 161 050,00

Legal reserve 0,00 0,00
Other reserves 11 451 050,00 3 161 050,00

Results broughtforward 37L828!,04 1977 548,33Resultofthefinancialyear !407285,74 L740732,62

The retained earnings of Caravela before 1 January 2020 have been treated as Consolidation reserves.

23. Reserves
Revaluation reserve
The revaluation/fair value reserve is intended to register adjustments in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets, net of impairment recognised in the financial year and/or previous financial years,
not being relevant to profit and loss until the disposal of assets, whereby the corresponding balance
is recognised in results or directly in equity.

2021 2020
Shares in issue Shares in issueClassification

Total 212000 2L20AA

202L 2020
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The composition of the Group's revaluation reserve is due to differences in consolidation which, at
the end of the financial years2O2\,202O and 2019, is composed as follows:

U: Euro
Consolidation reserves

Reserve for adjustments in the fair value of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Year 2019
Year 2020
Year 2021

-29790,77
-3 07L 4r2,L5
-4 350 810,28
-7 4520t3,L9TOTAT

Legal reserve
ln accordance with Luxembourg Company law dated 10 August 1915, the Company is required to
transfer a minimum of 5% of its net profit for each financial year to a legal reserve until the reserve
reaches IO% of the issued share capital.
For the period ended 31 December 2O2O and 31 December 2O21, no allocation was made to the legal
reserve as the Company has reported a loss for the financial periods.
24. Transactions between related parties
TPIF Douro Bidco S.d r.l. is 1-00% owned by Tosca Coinvest SCA SICAV-RAIF. On 31 December 2O2O,
TPIF Douro Bidco S.A.r.l. had an amount payable of 2O.198.739,00 euros due to the sole shareholder
related to the supplementary installments granted to finance the investment in Caravela - Companhia
de Seguros S.A..
The amount due from related parties for the year ended 31- december 2O2l pertain to transfers madeto the sole Shareholder amounting to 1.003.625 euros.
25. Cash Flow Statement
The statement was prepared by the direct method

26. Commitments
The Company holds operating and financial lease contracts regarding transportation and lT
equipment.
The detail as of December 3l-, 202L, by years of maturity of the operating lease contracts, is shown in
the table below:
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2022
2023
2024

17
8
9

U: Euro

77 971,82
24994,L0
6247L,02

The details as at December 3L, 202L, regarding financial lease contracts are as follows:

2023
2023
2023
2023
2025

I
1
1
1

I PT6PBQTD5N
1860027000
1850023400

t47337
2060004900

29 583,62
145,79
145,43

t014,28
734,59

U:Euro

1296,66
12I07,80
t2072,L9
75 666,29
26 356,86

27. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The Company did not consider it necessary to set up provisions for future payments, as it does not
consider it likely that this will happen.
There are no contingent liabilities to be disclosed as of the Financial Statements date.28. Events after the Balance Sheet date not described in previous items
There were no significant events to be registered after the Balance Sheet date.

Luxembourg, on May 17,2022

Board of Managers

End of the Contract No. of Vehicles Maximum amountpayable

105 436,94Total 34

End of the
Contract

No. of
Vehicles

No. Equipment(rBMl
Amountpavable
lnterest

Amountpayable EquityContract no.

Total 3L623,72 67 499,80
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2.2.1.1 -Sharei

OUle

tE0030487957
Lt727 4524\47
FRm11341227

$P M - (PNrl EURO EqUTTYCUSSO
OH RSMONETAIRE IC

xs2024602240
8E0@0347568
8S0m012888
s@00123x3
lE00BH3SQ895
tE@84ru0044

DEMOAlKOUG6

2.2.2.1'Of publicdebt
AUTOBAHN SCHNELL 0.1%/ 09-07-2029
ETAT EELGtqU E 0.9%/ 22{6-2029
EraT ESPAGNE 1.4%/ 3G07-2028
ETAI SPAGNE 4.4%/ 31/10/2023
eTATTRUNDE 1.1%/ 15{5-2029
ETAT I RUN DE 5.4%/ r3{3-202s
KN 23% lr7-O7-na2

432000
9S000
9m000

62 400
480000

62 400

100,05%
t07,aa%
109,43%
716.A!%
108,61%
!42,4%

1,00
1,08
1,09
!,27
1,09
7,42

432 203
1 035 120

1050489,@
79 129,M

521 323
84854

432
960
950

62
480

67

48
95
95
53

168

994,48
1 079,53
1 090,61
1 099,25
I 088,23
1 231,95

431 343
1035353
1045983

58 593
s22 351

16 474744 144000 773,52% 1,14 761462 1024,94 147s91subtotdr , rs! r!!9&o : : : ""tib.is irwcr
2.2.2.2 - Of other public htueE

D€X|A CR EO|T IOAL FRANCE O.2S%l 02-06-2027xs152336m28
FRm13lA3157
FR@11s12193
E9m0101693
E50m0101818
ES@0106619

ILE OE FRANCE 0.5%/ 14{5-2025
rLEDE FRANCE 2.25%/ 1G05-2023
MADRID 1.189X/ 08{s-2022
MAORTD 2.14596/ 34.04,2027
PAYS BASQUE 1.450Xl 30{4-2028

99,69%
91,54%

110,91%
104,05%
715,79%

47 85093fl1
106469

54 938,40
193 525,92

4a 000
95 000
96 000
52 800

164000

1@4,75
I o27,64
1 050,40
1 013,92I 724,40

4A 224
98653

100838
53 5t5

188900312 312000 771,47% 1,11 347 sar,60 1 089,03 339 77Asubtordr n ni'rJD :.t+!.qol. BBat

1,00
0,94
1,11
7,O4
1,15

03



TPIF Douro Bidco S.).r.1

loEltTlf lcATIoil oF sE0RlTtEs
krigffitloh

quntity
Code Unlt Tobl r

tromldlwl!! %ot rcmlml Ave68evrlue aquisidonprle ToElaqqbition Amountlnthcgalame shcet

s1136405342
xs2190510732
850200002022
ts0200002u8
850200m2014
FR0013302197
K1529854793
FR0013431137
K0745895000
FR0013505559
x52152795709
DE000A19gV6
x51878191052
xs1288342659
FR0013251170
xs1907118894
xs2051361264
FR0013378445
FR0011372522
xs1557268221
xs1107731702
x51079725334
xst67a37 2472
x51059549761
xs0821096418
xs1589881785
xs1910245676
xs1873143545
K1419645317
r1114473579
xs1851277959
xs1114477133
FR001320476
FR0013455540
FR0013403862
FR0011781764
FR001324&15
FR0013255369
re7377AglZ7Z
xs1401331753
FR0013255427
xs1to7727007
FR0013213832
xs1197833053
E5O224261U2
FR0011525482
FR0011559366
DE000A289XH5
DEOOOA194DD9
xs2147994995
xs1309518998
xs2009152591
x51505884723
xs1558083552
xs1222590488
xs1684269332
xs1515222385
x51382385471
x51378895954
FR0012345856
xs1396757854
xs1529584595
FROO72790327

2.2.2.3 - Ofoth€r isruers
3Ml.s%l Os-rr-2126
ABN AMRO BAN( 1.250%/28-05-2025
aDtFAV 0.8%/ 0s-07-2023
ADtF AV 0.950pJ/ 3G&-2027
aDE AV 1,875% /22-09-2022
ADP t%/ 11-12-2027
AEGON 1%/08-12-2023
Aroo.25%/ 29-06-2029
AFD3.1s%l \5-O2-2O27
ArR LtqutDE FrN 1%/02-s-202s
aTRBUS 1.625%/ 07-s,202s
AILIANZ FtN il 0.875%/06-12,2027
AMADEUS tT 0.875%/ 18-09-2023
AMERTCAN HONDA FtN 1.375%1 1Vt7-2O22
ASF L.725%|2O-O4-2O26
ATAND T 1.05%/ 05-09-2023
Ar T O.2s%l U-O3-2O26
Aros o.7s% o7 /o5/2o22
aucHAN 2.37 5%/ 72-L2-2O22
BANCO SANIANDER 1.375%l O9"O2 2022
BANK Of AtVERtA 1.375%l IGOS-2O21
BANK OF AMERTA 2.375%/ 19-06-202 4
BEVA O.75%/11-O9-2022
BFCM 3%l 27-05"2024
gK NED GEMEENTEN BNG2.2S% I 1O-O8-2O22
8MW FIN 0.875%/03-M-2025
BMW FtN 1%/ 14,11-2024
8MW FTNANCE 1%/29-08-2025
BNP 1.5%/25-05-2028
BP CAPtTAt MARKEIS pLC 2.213%/ 25-O9-2O2A
BP CAP|TA! [4ARKETs 0.9%/ O3-O7-24
BP CAPTTAL MARKETS 1.526%1 26-09-2022
BPCE 0.37s%/ 0s-1O-2023
aPcE o,5%l 24-02-2127
EPCE SFH 0.625%1 22-09-2027
BP CEGP 2.125% I 77 -O3-2O21
BPTFMNCE 0.75%/ 25,11-2O24
BPtFmNCE 1%/25-05-2027
BRIT|SH TETECOM 1,125% LO-O3-2O23
GRREFOUR O.75%/ 25-g-2024
ctt o.2%/ 16-05-2022
clTlGRouP 2.125%/ 10-09,2026
cNP ASSUMNCIS 1.875%/ 20-10-2022coq con 1.125%/09,03-2027
coREs 1.s%l 27-77-2022
cREDtT AGRtCOtE 3.15%/ 23-12-2023
cREDtTAGR|COLE SA 3.03O I 2L-02-2024
DATMLER 1.52s%/ 22-0S-2023
DATMTER FrN 0.875%/ 09/0412024
DANAHER 1.7%/ 30-03-2024
DEUTSCHE BAHN FtN 1.25%123-1G2O25
EtrYl ET O.875%/ 11-05-2025
ESYItT 1.125%/ 18-1G2023
EDP FTNANCE 1.875%/ 29,09-2023
EDP FTNANCE 2%/22,04-2025
ENt 7%l r4-O3-2O25
EQUTNOR 0,75%/ 09-11-2026
ILUOR 1.75%/ 2I-O3-2O23
FOMENTO ECONOMTCO 1.7s% /20/03/2023
FONCIERE LYONNAISE 1,875 %/ 26-17-2O2t
GAS NATURAL flN 1.25%/ 19-04-2026
GAS NtIWORS 1.375%/ 05-12-2025
GECINA 2% /17-06"2024

240
240

95
96
4a

336
95

284
192
48074
432
t92
192
480

4A
144
192

96
t44
48
48

192
96
72
95

432
480

95
240
\92
48

t92t4
192
14414

4A
96

288
480

4A
384
tgz
72014
288
4a

L44
4A
4A
96

240
48

t44
t44
96
96

192
744

95
288
240

tog,29%
99,68%
99,14%
99.85%

103,35%
105,68%
too,45%
100,63%
L26,S1%
95,38%
99,89%

105,84%
99,geA

ro43ea
99,74%
99,71%
99,75%

107,75%
99,15%

109,6s%
100,88%
109,03%

99,42%
771,4A%

99,44%
99,24%

109,53%
99,17%

110,35%
100,35%
105,47%

95,10%
99,O1%

10t,74%
102,90%
to3,17%
tol,69%

99,21%
99,86%

102,30%
9a,a2%

10L,40%
99,77%

174,65%
tt4,L2%
99,52%
99,85%
99,00%
98,45%
99,38%
99,55%

103,98%
99,90%
99,67%

704,47i6
100,90%

99,54%
to4,35%
LO4,4@6
99,85%
98,2W6

773,7t%
707,aa%

1,09
1,m
1,00
1,00
1,03
I,O7
1,00
1,01
1,27
0,96
1,00
1,06
1,00
1,04
1,00
1,00
1,00
1,08
1,00
1,10
1,01
1,09
o,99
1,11
0,99
0,99
1,10
1,00
1,10
1,00
1,05
0,96
0,99
7,O2
1,03
1,03
l,o2
0,99
1,00
1,O2
0,99
1,01
1,00
1,15
7,t4
1,00
1,00
o99
0,98
0,99
1,00
1,M
1,00
1,00
7,U
1,01
1,00
1,041,9
1,00
0,98
7,73
1,08

262 249
239 232
95754
95 852
49 508

358 455
96 432

289 814
243 011
462 643
143 446
457 229
191 8g
200 255
414 742
47 467

143 640
206 476

95 764
157 896

4A 422
52 334

190 886
107 016

17 624
95 313

473 170
474 gLO
105 936
240 845
202 502

46 \29
190 216
146 505
197 S6a
744 562
746 424
47 623
95 S63

294 619
474 346

4A 612
383 124
220 128
135 944
143 305
247 517
47 574

141 767
47 704
41 S3S
99 815

239 765
47 A42

150 441
745 296

95 559
100 175
200 444
t43 743

94 272
323 757
258 910

1 063,64
989,36

7 022,62
1 052,08
1022,14
1 034,59
1 025,53
1 009,07
1 224,57

968,80
1 040,98
1 M0,90
1 015,99
10t6,42

989,34
1 050,56
1022,37
1 065,91
tooT,29
1 026,74
1 0L4,14
1 071,59
1 010,48
1 026,38
1 035.82
1 032.59
L 042,64

992,21
1 098,28
1 027,96
1 018,41
1 010,99
1 003,35
1034,6L
1 031,64
1 055,13
1 022,42
1 019,32
1 005,78
1 019,90

974,62
1 018,70

988,18
1 064,00
I o57,O2
1 028,68

947,99
1 050,36
1 008,57
7 077,2A
1 041,38
1 078,05

981,95
1 035,50
t026,77
1 0st,37
1 004,24
7 M4,29
7 029,31

983,73
1 02418
I O97,54to61,a

2SS 273
237 M5
9a 172

100 999
49 063

347 623
98 451

290 511
235 885
455 024
149 901
M9 669
195 071
195 230
474 Aa4

50 432
147 249
2G 846

96 700
147 850

4A 679
51 436

194 012
98 533
74 579
99 128

467 701
476 260
105 435
246 7t1
195 535

48 528
t92 641
148 994
198 07s
153 522
147 247

48 927
96 555

293 441
469 716
48 897

379 462
2M284
128 042
148 129
244 542
50 477

745 234
48 829
49 985

103 494
235 670

49 704
147 855
751 397

96 401
100 252
197 624
t47 657
9a 321

316 090
255 702

240 000
240000

95 000
96 000
48 000

336 000
96 000

288 000
192 000
480 000
14 000
432 000
192 000
192 000
480 000
48 000

144 000
192 000

96 000
144 000

48 000
48 000

192 000
96 000
72 000
95 000

432 000
480000

96 000
240 000
192 000
48 000

192 000
1il4 000
192 000
14 000
14 000

48 000
96 000

288 000
480000

48 000
384 000
192 000
120000
144000
288 000

48 000
1& 000

48 000
48 000
95 000

240 000
48 000

144 000
144 000

96 000
96 000

192 000
144 000
96 000

288 000
240000
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

tDEmlfl 6TtoN oF SECUBtnES

Desitnadon
%of mmlml Av€ra&val* aqdsltionprlc

Unit '
aHniltytr

x51356025679
FR0011444t04
81485597329
xs1375955678
FR0013218393
x51882544627
x51319817323
K1578294081
xs1683495136
x51110449458
xs1402921412
[fl0012758985
FR0013286846
FR0013256830
xso2570227t4
x51839680580
x5t403264374
tR0012332203
s1398336351
s1575754945
s1685481332
xs2t44372696
x51640493372
xs1691349795
xs2149368529
s1s77747742
s1325825211
x51900752814
xs1382764s09
x50826634874
FRo013183431
tR0013241361
FR0013393774
81513140489
FR0012199055
fR0013214137
tn0013053329
tR0013505104
sl590133811
xs1955025651
xs7166754957
xs1412281534
xs1232098001
xsl318709497
xs0867612466
FR0013016531
82001717324
x$903136736
81178105851
fn0013311347
xs200$47674
FR0011075043
xs2155236296

MCOONALDS 1%/ 15-11-2023
MERCIALYS 1.787%/31{3-2023
MERUN PROP.2.225%/ 2S{4,20?3
MrTsustsHt un flN GR 0.872%lo7-o9-2o24
NATTONAL AUSTRAUA BK 0 -625XJ 1A49-2024N[$tt flN rNrL 1.12596/01/04/2028
NOSDEA BANk0.3%/30{6-2022
NORTEGAS 0.918%/ 2849"2022
PHtLtPS 1.375%/ 30-03-2025
PRTCEU NE 0.8% / 10{3 -2022
PRrCEINE 2.15%/25,11,2022
PROfrER AND GAMSTE 1.2%y' 30-10"202E
RAaOSANK 1.250%/ 23{3"2026
RABOBANK 4.12596/ 1449-2022
RATP 0.375%15-06-2024
RCt SANQUE 1.375*08{3-2024
RCt EANQUE2%/11-07-2024
REP9L INTt FtN 0.596/ 23{5-2022
RESEAU DE nANSPORT 1.525% loa -tO-2024
sacEss 0.62s%/ 20-10-2028
SANEF 1.875%4643"2026
SANOFt 1%/01{4-2025
5AMANOER CONS f tN 0.5rV04-10-2021
SAMANDER CONS ftN 1%/27{2-2024
SCHLUMBERGER FINANCE 1.375% 2E,10-2025
stMoN tML FtN 1.250%/ 13{5,2025
5tMON tffiL FtN 1.375%/ 18-11-2022
sNAM 1.375t6/ 19-11-2023sctfl E GENERALE 4t6l 07{6-2023
TDF tNFM$RUfr URE 2.875*l t9 -\0-2022
TELENOR 0.75%/ 3 l{5-2025
TESRACORP 2.S%/15{9-2023
TERNA 0.675%/ 02-02-2022
TBAL6 O.7sy./ 23{1-202S
TOTAL qP tNTL0.695%/ 31{5-2028
TOf AL tNFR.G& 4.339% /07{7-2021
TOYOTA FINANCE A USnALA 2.O04%l 2\-1O-2O24

HONEWETL tNTL 1.3%/ 22{2-2023
HSBC FRANCE 0.1%/ 03{9-2027
HSSC HLDG 0.87596/ 06{9-2024
t8M 1.75%07{3-2028
tuDE 1.125%1 77 -!!-2025
rNG GROUP 1%/20/09/2023
lNTr FhvoR FRAGRANCES 1.15*1 1443-2024r aLGAS 7.725%1 144X-2024
loHN DEERE q5H MANAG. 0.5%/ 1549-2023
rP MORGAN 1.37s96/ 16{9-2021
JP MORGAN 1.5%/ 29-10-2026u PoslE 1.12s%/04{5-2025
LEGMND 0.5%/09-10-2023
TEGUND 0.7s*/ 06{7-2024
TEHMAN 0%A2{6-2013

95
4a
48

tgz
zAa
336

96
95
95
48

L92
1&

4A
792
192
2Aa
384

95
96
96
95
4A

432
48t4

240
19
9614
95

432
48
4a
95
4a

480
192
95!4

480
288
7M
240

96
384
480
t44
266

96
192

95
284

96000
48000
48000

192000
288 000
335 000
96000
96000
96000
48000

192 000
14000

48 000
192 000
192000
288000
384000
95000
95000
96000
96000
48 000

432 000
48000

14000
240000

19 200
96000

144 000
95 000

432 000
48 000
48 000
96000
48000

460000
192000
95000

14 000
480 000
2EE 000
14 000
240000
96000

364000
480000
144000
288000

95 000
192 000

96 000
288000

99,32%
99,42%
99,71%
99,85%

105,00%
106,59%
107,75%
99,47%
99,59%
92,45%
99,33%

100,94%
103,30X
1o5,16%
100,00%
100,31%
99 50%
99,42%
99,89%
9955%

100,61%
100,05%
104,76%
!o3,67%
117,14%
100,55%
99,74%
99,63%

1@,02%
106,20%
111,85X
98,55%

1o7,12%
99,72%
99j6%

105,E3%
1O3,67%
103,41%
1t4,9t%

99,75%
99,62%
99,42%

111,39%
102,O3%
101,89%
99,86%
99,77%

105,53%
99,44%
99,37%
99j4%

101,89X

0,99
1,00
1,00
1,00
1,05
!,o7
1,O2
0,99
1,00
0,92
0,99
1,01
1,03
1,05
1,00
1,00
1,00
0,99
1,00
1,00
1,01
1,00
1,09
1,04
t,!7
l,o1
1,00
1,00
1,00
1,06
1,!Z
0,99
1,O2
1,00
1,00
7,O5
1,04
1,03
1,15
1,00
1,00
1,00
1,11
1,O2
1,O2
1,00
1,00
1,05
0,99
0,99
1,00
!,oz

95 351
47 975
47 859

791 724
302 393
358 132

97 680
95 492
95 609
44 t76

190 7t4
145 355
49 544

201 902
192000
288 889
382092

95 442
95 891
95 568
95588
4AOZ9

469843
49 763

!64 579
241 375

19 751
95 645

144035
101 952
483 192

47 152
49018
95 734
41 186

508 006
199045

99 274
155 528
478 805
286 894
143 736
267 326

97 944
391 250
479 347
143 670
303 918
95498

190 785
95 555

293 451

1O22,59
lo47,20
1 034,50
1015,17
1060,69
1 076,64
1 046,47
1012,54
1 024,26

0,10
983,90

1023,55
LO3Z,06
ro37,74
1025,15

991,61
I 019,0E
1 051,95
1 005,31
1 049,60
1 007,79
10t8,zz
1054,04
1058,39
1O42,71
1O14,24
103453
1049,58
1 005,44
1045,34
1 114,04
1 0!5,43
1 059,30
1 040,41
L029,71
1 052,21
1013,12
103q68
1078,38

996,00
993,04

1 027,OO
I 052,83
1008,96
I 025,43

985,59
1 028,50
1041,01
10a4,73
1 027,79
1 040,4
ro47,50

9A 179
50 255
49 655

194912
305 478
361765
100 461

97 204
98 329

5
188 909
147 401

49 539
199 245
196 828
285 585
39t 327
100987

96 510
100 761
96 744
48 875

459 665
r0 803

150 150
zM 379

19 853
100 750
144 978
100 49
481 265

49 701
51 126
99 879
49 425

505 051
194 519

98 945
155 287
474 O79
285 995
147 AAA
252 679

95 850
391 764
473 0E4
148 104
299 Ar2
99 334

196 184
99 882

301 6794EO 480000 105,54% 1,06 506 S9Z 1043,09 500 581

2.3 - Deivatives held for vadint
2.4 - Hedgint derivrtive

3 - GRANDTOTAL
'lncludestheamountof .riluadint.re*

q5



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

APPENDIX 2 - DEVETOPMENTOF THE PROVISION FOR CTAIMS IN RESPECT OF CI.AIMS INCURRED IN PREVIOUS FINANCIAT YEARS AND THEIR ADJUSTMENTS
U:Euro

Claims reserveon31l12l2O2O Costs with claimsr amount
paid in the financlal year (2)

Readiustments
(31+(21.(1)

Claims reserve* on
UNES OF BUSTNESS/UNES OF gUStNESS GROUpS 371121202r

I.IFE
NON.tIFE

ACCIDENTS AND HEALTH
FIRE ANO OTHER DAMAGE
MOTOR
. CIVIL LIABILITY
- OTHER COVERS

MARINE, AVIATION AND TRANSPORTS
THIRD PARW LIABILITY
CREDIT AND GUARANTEE
LEGAL PROIEgTION
ASSISTANCE
MISCELTANEOUS

0,00
15 314 980,69

1 105 702,85

7 8L7 463,82
2 699 L88,73

62 923,0s
584 501,91

0,00
4 151,50

36L449,67

0,00
3 396 989,16

84L 295,40

5 s76 963,s0
2L909L2,56

35 095,53
LLO 552,12

0,00
IL20t,62

400 536,24

0,00
16 522 223,L8

r52 L93,76

3 730 606,00
188 371,33

76 062,44
450 718,00

0,00
1 563,10

26794,57

0,00
3 604 237,65
-LL2 2L3,69

1 490 105,68
-319 90483

49 235,02
-t23 23L,79

0,00
86L3,2t

65 881,14
TOTAL

GRAND TOTAL
29O5O362,22
29050362,22

t2564546,24
1256456,24

2tt4a532,38
21 l/tg 532,38

4 6627L6,39
466271639

NOTESI* Claims incurred in 2020and previousyea6

66



TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

DIRECT INSURANCE
ACCIDENTS AND HEALTH
FIRE AND OTHER DAMAGE
MOTOR
. CIVIL LIABITITY
- OTHER COVERAGE

MARINE, AVIATION AND TRANSPORTS
THIRD PARTY LIABILITY
CREDIT AND GUARANTEE
TEGAL PROTECTION
ASSISTANCE

APPENDIX 3 . BREAKDOWN OF CLAIMS COSTS

5 792 539,73
2 792 267,94

lL 792 750,O4
7 067 795,64

66 829,s8
255 a4L,65

0,00
12 565,80

2 t668aL4O

596 972,50
100 711,55

479 754,56
L88M9,49

2L12,32
15 647,26

0,00
0,00
0,00

4 789 228,49
939 811,70

2 499 059,96
-L26 196,69

56 039,15
-41564,M

0,00
L 1t9,72

39 864,73

70 678 740,72
3 232 797,78

147tO974,57
7 730 048,44

124987,04
229 924,46

0,00
13 585,51

2 206 746,73

202L
U:Euro

ilNES OF EUSTNESS/UNES OF BUSTNESS
GROUPS

Pald amounts - payment byinstalments
(11

Paid amounts - claims
managem€nt costs

Changes in the claims Claims costsreServe {al=(1)+(2)+(3}{3)

29347 47\74 t42to37,68 7 357 t62,61 t8?27 892,06TOTAT
ACCEPTED

6RANDTOTAL 29ild.7 477,78 L42tO57,68 7 557 362,61 ?8527 892,,6
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TPIF Douro Bidco S.i.r.l.

APPENDIX 4 - EREA(DOWN OF SOME VALUES BY SRANCHES
U:Euto

Grosa written premium! Gro$s earned premiums Gross claim5 cdSts * Gross operating costs and
expenses *tines of Business Reinsuranc€ balance

DIRECT NON-LIFF INSURANCE
Accidents and Health
Fire and Other Damage
Motor:

Civil Uabillty
OiherCove6ge

Marine andTransports
Transponed Goods
Thkd Party Uability
Legal Protedion
Assistance

15 253 027,65
5 397 093,84

15 119 553,37
4 780 035,55

77 444 705,53
72667 295,47

59 238,00
108 256,15
7L6034,62
119 151,57

3022629,70

70 67A740,72
3232797,74

14770 914,57
7 7300d'A,M

84262,92
14 772,60

232470,OO
13 685,51

2206746,73

4 772 437,76I 426 L79,a7
-72704,63

-777224,92
7a 234 436,67
72822 179,76

73 290p7
104 516,60
727 537,27
72322A,57

3 726AOL,M

3 593 089,10
27rO233,45

14 989,51
27 432,42

!7A!32,96
3 424,09

95717,77

740 399,56
7 496747,97

-6! 346,74
39 588,21
-6542,27

0,00
-21,68

55 862 512,11 54 tl47 003,96 38 327 892,07 12 323 030,33 7 964a45,44TOTAT
(*) Without deduction of reinsurers' share.
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